

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service Publication 908 (Rev. July 1996) Cat. No. 15309S

Bankruptcy Tax Guide



Contents

| Introduction | 1 |
|-------------------------------------------------------------------|----|
| Individuals in chapter 12 or 13 | 2 |
| Individuals in chapter 7 or 11 Responsibilities of the Individual | 2 |
| Debtor | 2 |
| The Bankruptcy Estate | 3 |
| Partnerships and Corporations | 19 |
| Partnerships | 19 |
| Corporations | 19 |
| Tax Procedures | 19 |
| Determination of Tax | 19 |
| Payment of Tax Claim | 20 |
| Debt Cancellation | 21 |
| Exclusions | 21 |
| Tax Attribute Reduction | |
| Example | 23 |
| Partnerships | 22 |
| Corporations | 23 |
| Tax Attribute Reduction | |
| Example | 23 |
| How to Get More Information | 23 |
| Index | 26 |

Introduction

This publication covers the federal income tax aspects of bankruptcy. Bankruptcy proceedings begin with the filing of a petition with the bankruptcy court. The filing of the petition creates a bankruptcy estate, which generally consists of all the assets of the person filing the bankruptcy petition. A separate taxable entity is created if the bankruptcy petition is filed by an individual under chapter 7 or chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. These chapters are explained later. The tax obligations of taxable estates are discussed later under *The Bankruptcy Estate*.

The tax obligations of the person filing a bankruptcy petition (the debtor) vary depending on the bankruptcy chapter under which the petition was filed. For individuals, these are also explained in the first part of this publication. For other entities, see *Partnerships and Corporations*, later.

Generally, when a debt owed to another is canceled the amount canceled or forgiven is considered income that is taxed to the person owing the debt. If a debt is canceled under a bankruptcy proceeding, the amount canceled is not income. However, the canceled debt reduces the amount of other tax benefits the debtor would otherwise be entitled to. See *Debt Cancellation*, later.

This publication is not intended to cover bankruptcy law in general, or to provide detailed discussions of the tax rules for the more complex corporate bankruptcy reorganizations or other highly technical transactions. In these cases, you should seek competent professional advice.

Useful Items

You may want to see:

Publication

- ☐ 536 Net Operating Losses
- □ 538 Accounting Periods and Methods
- 544 Sales and Other Dispositions of Assets
- ☐ **551** Basis of Assets

Form (and Instructions)

- □ **SS-4** Application for Employer Identification Number
- 982 Reduction of Tax Attributes Due to Discharge of Indebtedness (and Section 1082 Basis Adjustment)
- ☐ **1041** U.S. Income Tax Return for Estates and Trusts
- □ **1041–ES** Estimated Income Tax for Fiduciaries

See *How To Get More Information*, near the end of this publication for information about getting these publications and forms.

Individuals in Chapter 12 or 13

A separate estate, for tax purposes, is not created for an individual who files a petition under Chapter 12 or 13 of the Bankruptcy Code. You, the individual, should continue to file the same federal income tax return that was filed prior to the bankruptcy petition.

On your return, report all income received during the entire year and deduct all allowable expenses. Do not include any debt canceled (because of bankruptcy) in income on your return. However, you must reduce (to the extent that you have) certain losses, credits or basis in property by the amount of canceled debt. See *Debt Cancellation*, later.

For information about determining the amount of tax due and paying tax, see *Tax Procedures*, later.

Note: Interest on trust accounts in Chapter 13 proceedings. If you are an individual debtor in a chapter 13 wage earner's plan, do not include as income on your return interest earned on amounts held in trust accounts while awaiting distribution to your creditors. This interest is not available either to you or to your creditors. It is available only to the trustees, and is taxable to the trustee as his or her individual income.

Individuals in Chapter 7 or 11

If you are an individual debtor who files for bankruptcy under chapter 7 or 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, a separate "estate" is created consisting of property that belonged to you before the filing date. This bankruptcy estate is a new taxable entity, completely separate from you as an individual taxpayer.

If a husband and wife file a joint bankruptcy petition and their estates are jointly administered, treat their estates as separate entities for tax purposes. Two separate tax returns **must** be filed (if they separately meet the filing requirements).

The estate, under a chapter 7 proceeding, is represented by a trustee. The trustee is appointed by the bankruptcy court to administer the estate and liquidate your nonexempt assets. In chapter 11, the debtor remains in control of the assets as a "debtor-in-possession." However, sometimes the bankruptcy court will appoint a trustee in a chapter 11 case. In this case, the debtor-in-possession must turn over to the trustee control of the debtor's assets and operations.

The estate may produce its own income as well as incur its own expenses. See *The Bankruptcy Estate*, later. The creation of a separate bankruptcy estate also gives you a "fresh start" —with certain exceptions, wages you earn and property you acquire after the bankruptcy case has begun belong to you and do not become a part of the bankruptcy estate.

If your bankruptcy case began but was later dismissed by the bankruptcy court, the estate is not treated as a separate entity, and you are treated as if the bankruptcy petition had never been filed in the first place. File amended returns on Form 1040X to replace any returns you previously filed. Include on any amended returns items of income, deductions, or credits that were or would have been reported by the bankruptcy estate on its returns and were not reported on returns you previously filed. However, you may not be able to deduct administrative expenses the former estate could have claimed. Also, the bankruptcy exclusion cannot be used to exclude debt that was canceled while you were under the bankruptcy court's protection. But the other exclusions (such as insolvency) may apply.

Responsibilities of the Individual Debtor

You, as the individual debtor, generally must file income tax returns during the period of the bankruptcy proceedings. Do not include on your return, the income, deductions, or credits belonging to the separate bankruptcy estate. Also do not include as income on your return, the debts canceled because of bankruptcy. However, the bankruptcy estate must reduce certain losses, credits, and the basis in property (to the extent of these items) by the amount of canceled debt. See *Debt Cancellation*, later.

You have the option of ending your tax year on the day before you filed your bankruptcy petition. This allows the tax due on that short period return to be a claim against the bankruptcy estate. See *Election to End Tax Year*, later.

See *Tax Procedures*, later, for information about determining and paying the amount of tax due.

Tax attributes. Certain deduction and credit carryovers and decisions that you made in earlier years are taken over by the bankruptcy estate when you file for bankruptcy. These include carryovers of deductions, losses, and credits, your method of accounting, and the basis and holding period of assets. These are referred to as tax attributes.

When the estate is terminated, you assume any remaining tax attributes that were taken over by the estate and generally assume any attributes arising during the administration of the estate. See Attribute carryovers, later under The Bankruptcy Estate, for a list of attributes. Also, see Administrative expenses under The Bankruptcy Estate for a limitation.

Disclosure of return information. The bankruptcy estate's income tax returns are open, upon written request, to inspection by or disclosure to you the individual debtor. The disclosure is necessary so that you can properly figure the amount and nature of the tax attributes, if any, that you must assume when the bankruptcy estate is terminated.

In addition, your income tax returns for the year the bankruptcy case begins and for earlier years are open to inspection by or disclosure to the bankruptcy estate's trustee. See Disclosure of return information, later, under The Bankruptcy Estate.

Transfer of assets to the estate. Bankruptcy law determines which of your assets become part of the bankruptcy estate. Generally, all of your legal and equitable interests become property of the estate. However, you may "exempt" certain property from the estate.

A transfer (other than by sale or exchange) of an asset from you to the bankruptcy estate is not treated as a "disposition" for income tax purposes. This means that the transfer does not result in gain or loss, recapture of deductions or credits, or acceleration of income or deductions. For example, the transfer of an installment obligation to the estate would not accelerate gain under the rules for reporting installment sales.

If you receive any assets from the bankruptcy estate when it terminates, do not treat the transfer as a taxable disposition. You treat these assets the same as the bankruptcy estate would have treated them. This includes using the same basis, holding period, and character of the assets as the bankruptcy estate did before it was terminated.

Abandonments. If you receive abandoned property from the estate, you receive the same basis in the property that the estate had.

Carrybacks from your activities. As the individual debtor, you cannot carry back any net operating loss or credit carryback from a tax year ending after the bankruptcy case has begun to any tax year ending before the case began. The estate, however, can carry the loss back to offset your pre-bankruptcy income.

Election to End Tax Year

If you are an individual debtor and have assets (other than those you exempt from the bankruptcy estate), you may choose to end your tax year on the day before the filing of your bankruptcy case. Then your tax year is divided into 2 "short" tax years of fewer than 12 months each. The first year ends on the day before the filing date, and the second year begins with the filing date and ends on the date your tax year normally ends. Once you make this choice, you may not change it. Any income tax liability for the first short tax year becomes an allowable claim (as a claim arising before bankruptcy) against the bankruptcy estate. If this tax liability is not paid in the bankruptcy proceeding, the liability is not canceled because of bankruptcy and it can be collected from you as an individual.

If you do not choose to end the tax year, then no part of your tax liability for the year in which bankruptcy proceedings begin can be collected from the estate.

Making the election. If you choose to end your tax year, you do so by filing a return on Form 1040 for the first short tax year on or before the 15th day of the fourth full month after the end of that first tax year.

Example. John Doe files a bankruptcy petition on July 10. To have a timely filed election, he must file Form 1040 (or an extension) for the period January 1 through July 9 by November 15.

To avoid delays in processing the return, write "Section 1398 Election" at the top of the return. You may also make the election by attaching a statement to an application for extension of time to file a tax return (Form 4868 or other). The statement must say that you choose under section 1398(d)(2) to close your tax year on the day before the filing of the bankruptcy case. You must file the application for extension by the due date of the return for the first short tax year. If your spouse decides to also close his or her tax year, see *Election by debtor's spouse*, next.

Election by debtor's spouse. If you are married, your spouse may also join in the choice to end the tax year, but only if you and your spouse file a joint return for the first short tax year. You must make these choices by the due date for filing the return for the first short tax year. Once you make the choice, it cannot be revoked for the first year; however, the choice does not mean that you and your spouse must file a joint return for the second short tax year.

Later bankruptcy of spouse. If your spouse files for bankruptcy later in the same year, he or she may also choose to end his or her tax year, regardless of whether he or she joined in the choice to end your tax year. Because each of you has a separate bankruptcy, one or both of you may have 3 short tax years in the same calendar year. If your spouse had joined in your choice, or if you had not made the choice to end your tax year, you can join in your spouse's choice. But if you had made an election and your spouse did not join in the election, you cannot join in your spouse's later

election. This is because you and your spouse, having different tax years, could not file a joint return for a year ending on the day before your spouse's filing of bankruptcy.

Example 1. Paul and Mary Harris are calendar-year taxpayers. A voluntary chapter 7 bankruptcy case involving only Paul begins on March 4.

If Paul does not make an election, his tax year does not end on March 3. If he does make an election, Paul's first tax year is January 1—March 3, and his second short tax year begins on March 4. Mary could join in Paul's election as long as they file a joint return for the tax year January 1—March 3. They must make the election by July 15, the due date for filing the joint return.

Example 2. Fred and Ethel Barnes are calendar-year taxpayers. A voluntary chapter 7 bankruptcy case involving only Fred begins on May 6, and a bankruptcy case involving only Ethel begins on November 1 of the same year.

Ethel could choose to end her tax year on October 31. If Fred had not elected to end his tax year on May 5, or if he had elected to do so but Ethel had not joined in his election, Ethel would have 2 tax years in the same calendar year if she decided to close her tax year. Her first tax year is January 1—October 31, and her second year is November 1—December 31.

If Fred had not decided to end his tax year as of May 5, he could join in Ethel's choice to close her tax year on October 31, but only if they file a joint return for the tax year January 1—October 31. If Fred had elected to end his tax year on May 5, but Ethel had not joined in Fred's choice, Fred could not join in Ethel's choice to end her tax year on October 31, because they could not file a joint return for that short year. They could not file a joint return because their tax years preceding October 31 were not the same.

Example 3. Jack and Karen Thomas are calendar-year taxpayers. A voluntary chapter 7 bankruptcy case involving only Karen begins on April 10, and a voluntary chapter 7 bankruptcy case involving only Jack begins on October 3 of the same year. Karen chooses to close her tax year on April 9 and Jack joins in Karen's choice.

Under these facts, Jack would have 3 tax years for the same calendar year if he makes the election relating to his own bankruptcy case. The first tax year would be January 1—April 9; the second April 10—October 2; and the third October 3—December 31.

Karen may (but does not have to) join in Jack's election if they file a joint return for the second short tax year (April 10—October 2). If Karen does join in, she would have the same 3 short tax years as Jack. Also, if Karen joins in Jack's election, they may file a joint return for the third tax year (October 3—December 31), but they are not required to do so.

Annualizing taxable income. If you choose to close your tax year, you must annualize your taxable income for each short tax year the same way it is done for a change in an annual

accounting period. See Short Tax Year in Publication 538, Accounting Periods and Methods, for information on how to annualize your income and how to figure your tax for the short tax year.

Filing requirement. If you elect to end your tax year on the day before filing the bankruptcy case, you must file the return for the first short tax year as explained earlier under *Making the election*.

If you make this election, you must also file a separate Form 1040 for the second short tax year by the regular due date. You should note on the return that it is the "Second Short Year Return After Section 1398 Election."

If the bankruptcy case is later dismissed, you (the debtor) must file an amended return to replace any full or short year returns that you filed. Attach a statement to any amended return you file explaining why you are filing an amended return. In this situation, no bankruptcy estate is created for tax purposes. Income that was or would be reported by the bankruptcy estate must be reported on your return.

The Bankruptcy Estate

The filing of a bankruptcy petition for an individual debtor under chapter 7 or chapter 11 of the bankruptcy code creates a separate taxable bankruptcy estate. The trustee (for chapter 7 cases) or the debtor-in-possession (for chapter 11 cases) is generally responsible for preparing and filing the estate's tax returns and paying its taxes. The debtor remains responsible for filing returns and paying taxes on any income that does not belong to the estate.

If a bankruptcy case begins, but later is dismissed by the bankruptcy court, the estate is not treated as a separate taxable entity. If tax returns have been filed for the estate, amended returns must be filed to move income and deductions from the estate's returns to the debtor's returns. If no returns have been filed, report all income and deductions on the debtor's returns.

The following discussions provide tax information for the bankruptcy estate.

Treatment of income, deductions, and credits. The gross income of the bankruptcy estate includes any of the debtor's gross income to which the estate is entitled under the bankruptcy law. The estate's gross income also includes any income the estate is entitled to and receives or accrues after the beginning of the bankruptcy case. Gross income of the bankruptcy estate does not include amounts received or accrued by the debtor before the bankruptcy petition date.

The bankruptcy estate may deduct or take as a credit any expenses it pays or incurs, the same way that the debtor would have deducted or credited them had he or she continued in the same trade, business, or activity and actually paid or accrued the expenses. Allowable expenses include administrative expenses, such as attorney fees and court costs. These are discussed later under *Administrative expenses*.

The bankruptcy estate figures its taxable income the same way as an individual figures his or her taxable income. The estate can take one personal exemption and either individual (itemized) deductions or the basic standard deduction for a married individual filing a separate return. The estate cannot take the higher standard deduction allowed for married persons filing separately who are 65 or older or blind. The estate uses the rates for a married individual filing separately to figure the tax on its taxable income.

Transfer of assets between debtor and estate. Bankruptcy law determines which of the debtor's assets become part of the bankruptcy estate. These assets are treated the same in the estate's hands as they were in the debtor's hands.

A transfer (other than by sale or exchange) of an asset from the debtor to the bankruptcy estate is not treated as a "disposition" for income tax purposes. This means that the transfer does not result in gain or loss, recapture of deductions or credits, or acceleration of income or deductions. For example, the transfer of an installment obligation to the estate would not accelerate gain under the rules for reporting installment sales. The estate is treated the same way the debtor would be regarding the transferred asset.

When the bankruptcy estate is terminated, that is, dissolved, any resulting transfer (other than by sale or exchange) of the estate's assets back to the debtor is not treated as a disposition. This transfer does not result in gain or loss, recapture of deductions or credits, or acceleration of income or deductions to the estate.

The abandonment of property by the estate to the debtor is a nontaxable disposition of property.

Attribute carryovers. The bankruptcy estate must treat its tax attributes the same way that the debtor would have treated them. These items must be determined as of the first day of the debtor's tax year in which the bankruptcy case begins. The bankruptcy estate gets the following tax attributes from the debtor:

- 1) Net operating loss carryovers,
- 2) Carryovers of excess charitable contributions,
- 3) Recovery of tax benefit items,
- 4) Credit carryovers,
- 5) Capital loss carryovers,
- 6) Basis, holding period, and character of assets.
- 7) Method of accounting,
- Passive activity loss and credit carryovers,
- 9) Unused at-risk deductions, and
- Other tax attributes as provided in regulations.

Certain tax attributes of the estate must be reduced by any excluded income from cancellation of debt occurring in a bankruptcy proceeding. See *Debt Cancellation*, later.

Termination of the estate. If the bankruptcy estate has any tax attributes at the time it is terminated, they are assumed by the debtor.

Passive and at-risk activities. For bankruptcy cases beginning on or after November 9, 1992, treat passive activity carryover losses and credits and unused at-risk deductions as tax attributes that the debtor passes to the bankruptcy estate and the estate passes back to the debtor when the estate terminates. Additionally, transfers to the debtor (other than by sale or exchange) of interests in passive or at-risk activities are treated as exchanges that are not taxable. These transfers include the return of exempt property to the debtor and the abandonment of estate property to the debtor.

Cases beginning before November 9, 1992. If a bankruptcy case begins before November 9, 1992, and ends on or after that date, the debtor and the trustee for an individual chapter 7 case (the debtor-in-possession for an individual chapter 11 case) can elect to have these provisions apply. In a chapter 7 case, the election is made jointly by the debtor and the trustee of the bankruptcy estate. In a chapter 11 case, the election is incorporated in the bankruptcy plan. See IRS regulations 1.1398–1 and 1.1398–2 for more information on how to make this election.

Administrative expenses. The bankruptcy estate is allowed a deduction for administrative expenses and any fees or charges assessed it. These expenses are generally deductible as itemized deductions subject to the 2% floor on miscellaneous itemized deductions. However, administrative expenses attributable to the conduct of a trade or business by the bankruptcy estate or the production of the estate's rents or royalties are deductible in arriving at adjusted gross income.

The expenses are subject to disallowance under other provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, such as disallowing certain capital expenditures, taxes, or expenses relating to taxexempt interest. These expenses can only be deducted by the estate, and never by the debtor.

If the administrative expenses of the bankruptcy estate are more than its gross income for the tax year, the excess amount may be carried back 3 years and forward 7 years. The amounts can only be carried back or forward to a tax year of the estate and never to the debtor's tax year. The excess amount to be carried back or forward is treated like a net operating loss and must first be carried back to the earliest year possible. For a discussion of the net operating loss, see Publication 536, Net Operating Losses.

Change of accounting period. The bankruptcy estate may change its accounting period (tax year) once without getting approval from the Internal Revenue Service. This rule allows the trustee of the estate to close the estate's tax year early, before the expected termination of the estate. The trustee can then file a return for the first short tax year to get a quick determination of the estate's tax liability. Carrybacks from the estate. If the bankruptcy estate itself has a net operating loss, separate from any losses passing to the estate from the debtor under the attribute carryover rules, the bankruptcy estate can carry the loss back not only to its own earlier tax years but also to the debtor's tax years before the year the bankruptcy case began. The estate may also carry back excess credits, such as the general business credit, to the pre-bankruptcy years.

Return Requirements and Payment of Tax

The trustee (or debtor-in-possession) must file an income tax return on Form 1041, *U.S. Income Tax Return for Estates and Trusts* if the estate has gross income that meets or exceeds the amount required for filing. This amount is the total of the personal exemption amount and the basic standard deduction for a married individual filing separately. See the Form 1041 instructions for the current year's amount.

If a return is required, the trustee (or debtor-in-possession) completes the identification area at the top of the Form 1041 and lines 23–29 and signs and dates it. Form 1041 is a transmittal for Form 1040, *U.S. Individual Income Tax Return.* Complete Form 1040 and figure the tax using the tax rate schedule for a married person filing separately. In the top margin of Form 1040, write "Attachment to Form 1041. **DO NOT DETACH.**" Attach Form 1040 to the Form 1041.

Note: The filing of a tax return for the bankruptcy estate does not relieve the individual debtor of his or her tax filing requirement.

Estimated tax. The trustee or debtor-in-possession must pay estimated tax (if any is due) for the bankruptcy estate. See the Instructions to Form 1041–ES, *Estimated Income Tax for Fiduciaries*, for information regarding the dollar limits and exceptions to filing Form 1041–ES and paying estimated tax.

Employer identification number. The trustee (or debtor-in-possession) must obtain an employer identification number (EIN) for a bankruptcy estate if the estate must file any form, statement, or document with the IRS. The trustee uses this EIN on any tax return filed for the bankruptcy estate including estimated tax returns. The trustee can obtain an EIN for a bankruptcy estate by filing Form SS-4. Application for Employer Identification Number. Form SS-4 is available at IRS or Social Security Offices. Trustees representing ten or more bankruptcy estates (other than estates that will be filing employment or excise tax returns) may file a consolidated application to obtain blocks of ten or more EINs by following the procedures set out in Revenue Procedure 89-37, 1989-1 C.B. 919.

Note: The social security number of the individual debtor **cannot** be used as the EIN for the bankruptcy estate.

Employment taxes. The trustee (or debtorin-possession) must withhold income and social security taxes and file employment tax returns for any wages paid by the trustee (or debtor), including wage claims paid as administrative expenses. Until these employment taxes are deposited as required by the Internal Revenue Code, they should be set apart in a separate bank account to ensure that funds are available to satisfy the liability. If the employment taxes are not paid as required, the trustee may be held personally liable for payment of the taxes. See Publication 15, Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide, for details on employer tax responsibilities.

The trustee has the duty to prepare and file Forms W–2, Wage and Tax Statement, in connection with wage claims paid by the trustee, regardless of whether the claims accrued before or during bankruptcy. If the debtor fails to prepare and file Forms W–2 for wages paid before bankruptcy, the trustee should instruct the employees to file an IRS Form 4852, SUB-STITUTE FOR FORM W–2, WAGE AND TAX STATEMENT OR FORM 1099R, DISTRIBUTIONS FROM PENSIONS, ANNUITIES, RETIREMENT OR PROFIT-SHARING PLANS, IRSURANCE CONTRACTS, ETC., with their individual income tax returns.

Disclosure of return information. The debtor's income tax returns for the year the bankruptcy case begins and for earlier years are, upon written request, open to inspection by or disclosure to the trustee. If the bankruptcy case was not voluntary, disclosure cannot be made before the bankruptcy court has entered an order for relief, unless the court rules that the disclosure is needed for determining whether relief should be ordered.

For information concerning the disclosure of the bankruptcy estate's tax return see *Disclosure of return information*, earlier, under *Responsibilities of the Individual Debtor*.

Example.

Caution. This publication is not revised annually. Future changes to the forms and their instructions may not be reflected in this example.

On December 15, 1994, Thomas Smith filed a bankruptcy petition under chapter 7.

Joan Black was appointed trustee to administer the estate and to distribute the assets.

The estate received the following assets from Mr. Smith:

- 1) A \$100,000 certificate of deposit,
- 2) Commercial rental real estate with a fair market value of \$280,000, and
- 3) His personal residence with a fair market value of \$200,000.

Also, the estate received a \$251,500 capital loss carryover.

Mr. Smith's bankruptcy case was closed on December 31, 1995. During 1995, Mr. Smith was relieved of \$70,000 of debt by the court. The estate chose a calendar year as its tax year. Joan, the trustee, reviews the estate's transactions and reports the taxable events on the estate's final return.

Schedule B (Form 1040). The certificate of deposit earned \$5,500 of interest during 1995. Joan reports this interest on Schedule B. She completes this schedule and enters the result on Form 1040.

Form 4562. Joan enters the depreciation allowed on Form 4562. She completes the form and enters the result on Schedule E.

Schedule E (Form 1040). The commercial real estate was rented through the date of sale. Joan reports the income and expenses on Schedule E. She enters the net income on Form 1040.

Form 4797. The commercial real estate was sold on July 1, 1995, for \$280,000. The property was purchased in 1983 at a cost of \$250,000. It was depreciated using straight line depreciation and the total depreciation allowed or allowable as of the date of sale was \$120,000. Additionally, \$25,000 of selling expenses were incurred. She reports the gain or loss from the sale on Form 4797. She completes the form and enters the gain on Schedule D (Form 1040).

Form 2119. Mr. Smith's former residence was sold on September 30, 1995. The sale price was \$200,000, the selling expenses were

\$20,000 and his adjusted basis was \$130,000. Joan enters this information on Form 2119. Joan completes Form 2119 and enters the gain on Schedule D (Form 1040).

Schedule D (Form 1040). Joan completes Schedule D, taking into account the \$250,000 capital loss carryover from 1994 (\$251,500 transferred to the estate minus \$1,500 used on the estate's 1994 return). She enters the results on Form 1040.

Form 1040, page 1. Joan completes page 1 of the 1040 and enters the adjusted gross income on the first line of Form 1040, page 2.

Schedule A (Form 1040). During 1995, the estate paid mortgage interest and real property tax on Mr. Smith's former residence. It also paid income tax to the state. Joan enters the mortgage interest, real estate tax and income tax on Schedule A. Also, she reports the estate's administrative expenses as a miscellaneous deduction subject to the 2% floor. She completes the Schedule A and enters the result on page 2 of Form 1040.

Form 1040, page 2. Joan determines the estate's taxable income and figures its tax using the tax rate schedule for married filing separately. She then enters the estate's estimated tax payments and figures the amount the estate still owes.

Form 982. Joan completes the Schedule D worksheet for capital loss carryover. Because \$70,000 of debt was canceled, Joan must reduce the tax attributes of the estate by the amount of the canceled debt. See *Debt Cancellation*, later. In 1996, Thomas Smith (the individual) will assume the estate's tax attributes. Mr. Smith will assume a capital loss carryover of \$3,500 (\$73,500 carryover minus the \$70,000 attribute reduction).

Form 1041. Joan enters the total tax, estimated tax payments, and tax due from Form 1040 on Form 1041. She completes the identification area at the top of Form 1041, then signs and dates the return.

| 1995 | Ì |
|------|---|
|------|---|

To calendar year 1995 or fiscal year beginning 1995, and ending 1995.

| For | calenda | ryear 1995 or fis | scal year beginning | <u>,</u> 1995, a | nd ending | . 19 | | OMB No. 1545- | 0092 | | | | | |
|---------------|-----------------------|---------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------------------------------------|-----------------|----------------------------------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Ā | Type of e | entity: | Name of estate or trust | (if a grantor type trust, see) | page 7 of the instru | ctions.) | C Emp | ployer identification n | rumber | | | | | |
| | Decedent | t's estate | | | | | 02 | 000000 | | | | | | |
| = | Simple to | | - - | 0 0 | | - | D Date | e entity created | | | | | | |
| $\overline{}$ | • | | /hamas | Smith Ba | nkrunt | L'STOTE | 12 | 2-15-94 | | | | | | |
| \equiv | Complex | | Name and title of fiduci | an and a second | | | | nexempt charitable and | d split- | | | | | |
| | Grantor ty | •• | | CK Trustee | _ | | | rest trusts, check app | | | | | | |
| | | cy estate-Ch. 7 | Number of the | om or suite no. (If a P.O. box | non more 7 of the | ineterations ! | | es (see page 9 of the | | | | | | |
| | | cy estate-Ch, 11 | Number, street, and roc | on or some no. (r a r.o. ook | , see page / Or me | instructions. | | ructions): | | | | | | |
| | | come fund | | e Street | | | □ Dea | scribed in section 494 | ∔7(a) (1) | | | | | |
| 8 | Number to attached | of Schedules K-1 | City or town, state, and | | | | □ No | Not a private foundation | | | | | | |
| | instruction | na) Þ | Anywaen | e USR oc | 0000 | | | scribed in section 494 | | | | | | |
| | Check applicable | ြ Initial re | etum 🖾 Final return | Amended return | GP | ooled mortgage acc | ount (see | page 9 of the instru | ctions): | | | | | |
| | boxes: | Change | e in fiduciary's name | Change in fiduciary's | acidress | Bought : | Sold D | late: | | | | | | |
| | 1 1 | Interest income | | | - | | 1 | | | | | | | |
| | | Dividends | • • • • • • • • | | | | 2 | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | | 40400 | | · - | | - | | | | | |
| 9 | 3 1 | | | Schedule C or C-EZ (Fo | | | • | | | | | | | |
| | 1 * 9 | | | luie D (Form 1041)) | | | · - | | +- | | | | | |
| ŭ | 5 1 | | | estates and trusts, etc. | • | | ' | + | \vdash | | | | | |
| _ | 6 I | Farm income of | or (loss) (attach Sche | edule F (Form 1040)) | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 7 (| Ordinary gain o | or (loss) (attach Form | n 4797) | | | | | ₩. | | | | | |
| | | | | nt | | | | | — | | | | | |
| _ | 8 . | Total income. | Combine lines 1 thr | ough 8 | | <u></u> | 9 | | — | | | | | |
| | 10 1 | Interest, Check | k if Form 4952 is att | ached ▶ 🔲 | | | . 10 | 1 | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| | 11 ' | Taxes | | | | | . 11 | <u></u> | <u></u> | | | | | |
| | 12 | Fiduciary fees | | | | | 12 | | T | | | | | |
| | 1 | - | | le A, line 7) | | | 13 | j l | \top | | | | | |
| 100 | 1 | | untant, and return p | | • | | \vdash | | | | | | | |
| 5 | | | | | 154 | · † | +- | | | | | | | |
| Deductions | 15a | | ons NOT subject to t | 156 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 구 | b / | Allowable misc | | | ┼ | | | | | | | | | |
| ĕ | 16 | Total. Add line: | . 16 | | + | | | | | | | | | |
| _ | 117 4 | | | ct line 16 from Ilne 9. Ent | | | | | ₩ | | | | | |
| | 18 | Income distribu | ution deduction (from | Schedule B, line 17) (a | ittach Schedule | s K-1 (Form 1041 | | | | | | | | |
| | 19 | Estate tax dedu | <u>. 19</u> | <u>'</u> | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 20 | Exemption . | | | | | . 20 | <u>) </u> | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| _ | 21 | Total deduction | ons. Add lines 18 thr | ough 20 | | | ≥ 21 | | | | | | | |
| | 22 | Taxable income | e. Subtract line 21 fr | rom line 17. if a loss, s | ee page 13 of | the instructions | 22 | | | | | | | |
| | | | Schedule G, line 8) | | . • | | 23 | 2.607 | \top | | | | | |
| | 24 | _ | • | payments and amount | | | 244 | | $\overline{}$ | | | | | |
| ents | ь | | • | to beneficiaries (from I | | | 24 | | \top | | | | | |
| | | | 4b from line 24a . | · | • | | 24 | | 1 | | | | | |
| Fax and Paym | | | | files D Form 9759 | | ☐ Fa 0004 | | | + | | | | | |
| ā | d | | | file: Form 2758 | | | 244 | | + | | | | | |
| 7 | • | | | is from Form(s) 1099 | | | . — | | +- | | | | | |
| E | il ' | | | ; g Form 4 | | | | | +- | | | | | |
| × | 25 | | | ough 24e, and 24h. | | | ► 25 25 | | + | | | | | |
| 1 | 26 | Estimated tax | penalty (see page 14 | 4 of the instructions) | | | . 26 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | the total of lines 23 an | • | | | | 4 | | | | | |
| | | | | nan the total of lines 2 | | | | 1 1 | ₩ | | | | | |
| _ | 29 / | | | to 1996 estimated tax | | ; b Refunded | | | | | | | | |
| ΡI | ease | Under panalties | of perjury, I declare that I i | have examined this return, inc | duding accompanyle | ng schedules and state | ments, an | d to the best of my km | owledge | | | | | |
| | gn | and belief it is to | rue, correct, and complete | . Declaration of preparer (oth | | | on of which | n preparer has any kno | wiedge. | | | | | |
| | _ | L loa | n Black | Trustee. | 2/15/96 | | 0000 | | | | | | | |
| - | ere | Signature of | fiduciary or officer repres | enting fiduciary | Date | EIN of fiduciery if a fine | ncial instituti | tion (see page 3 of the ins | structions) | | | | | |
| D-1 | | Preparer's | | | Dade | Check if self | Prepar | er's social security no | | | | | | |
| Pai | - | signature | | | | employed ▶ □ | | | | | | | | |
| | parer's | Lium 2 usuue for | | | | EIN ▶ | | | | | | | | |
| n2 (| e Only | yours if self-emp | ployed) | | | ZIP code ▶ | | | | | | | | |
| _ | | | ' | | | | | | | | | | | |

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see page 1 of the separate instructions.

Cat. No. 11370H

Form 1041 (1995)

| | | | | | _ | _ | | \sim | | | |
|---------------------------------------|----------|----------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|--------------|-------------------------------------------|-----------------|
| ATTOCK | 500 | ent 1 | to Form | 1041 | D | 01 | VOT | 1) | 上 | ACH | (1) |
| 1040 | D | epertment o | of the Treesury—Int | ernal Revenue | Service <1(| 9 95 | | _ | _ | - | :: |
| IVTU | | | ividual incon ian. 1-Dec. 31, 1995, | | 1, - | 900 | , 1995, ending | iniy—Don | # write or 1 | Maple in the space. | |
| Label / | Ť | | eme and initial | tor course care ye | Last name | | , raso, entirig | $\overline{}$ | <u> </u> | OMB No. 154 pole security runt | |
| See | Ļ | | Thor | 205 | a ' \ | AKTUS | Tcy Estat | ر ء | | 0 00000 | |
| nstructions | 6 | If a joint ret | turn, spouse's first na | | Last name | 4011-47 | - ST LAC | \vdash | | 's social security | |
| on page 11.) Jee the IRS | | | _ Joan | , | Black. | Trusta | فو | | | 1 1 | |
| aper | # [| Home addr | ess (number and stre | | | | Apt. no. | . – | For I | rivacy Act an | |
| Otherwise, please print | E L | | 111.5 | tate J | | | | | Pape | rwork Reduct | tion |
| or type. | Ë | City, town o | or post office, state, a | | | pn address, i | see page 11. | | Act I | iotice, see pa | ige 7. |
| Prozidential 🔪 | <u> </u> | | | uhere. | USA | 0000 | <u>o</u> | / | Yes N | Note: Checkin will not chang | |
| Bection Camps See page 11.) | ilga 🕽 | | u want \$3 to go to | | | | | - | - | tax or reduce | |
| See page 11.) | | . I a ju | int return, does you | ur spouse war | it as to go to ti | NS TURKEY , | | • | <u> </u> | refund. | |
| Filing Statu | 2 | <u>'</u> | Single | | | | | | | | |
| See page 11.) | | | Married filing joir | | - | | | | _ | | |
| | | | Married filing separ Head of househo | | | | | | | | |
| Check only one box. | | · [] | enter this child's | | | progra (42.) | are dremkud t | eviaufi R | e Griki i | we new Acrit debe | enverit, |
| | | 5 | Qualifying widow | r(er) with depe | ndent child (ye | er spouse | died ▶ 19 |). (See | page 12 | .) | |
| Evometice- | | Ba 🔀 Yo | ourself. If your pared | | | | | | | No. of boxes | |
| Exemptions | | <u>. </u> | | iet check bax i | Sa. But be sure : | to check the | e box on line 33b | on page | 2 .} | sheeked on Sa and \$6 | |
| See page 12.) | | | pouse ndents: | | (2) Dependen | l's gorial T | (3) Dependent's | (4) No. of | <u></u> J | No. of your | |
| | | (1) First | | патье | security numb | er. A born | relationship to | lived in | your | ahlidren on 6c mba: | |
| | | | | | in 1995, zee | page 13. | - Aón | home in | 1995 | • Hved with you | |
| more than six | | | - | | † † | | _ | | _ | • Mide'l live with | |
| lependents, se page 13. | | | | | | | | _ | | you due to Siverce or | |
| | | | | | | | | | | zaparation (zae page 14) | |
| | | | - | | | | | Ĺ | | Dependents on Ex | |
| | | | | | | | | | | net entered above . | |
| | | | child didn't live with ye number of exemptic | | as your dependent | under a pre- | 1985 agreement, cha | eck here i | ▶ □ | Add numbers entered on Heas above > | |
| - | 7 | | s, salaries, tips, etc | | (s) W-2 | | | | 7 | 10.00 | |
| ncome | | a Taxab | le interest income | (see page 15) | Attach Sched | ie Blfove | r \$400 | | 84 | 5500 | |
| ttach | | b Tax-ex | compt Interest (see | page 15). DOI | er include on li | ne 8a <u>86</u> | <u> </u> | | | • | |
| opy B of your forms W-2. | • | | nd income. Attach | | | | | | 9 | | ↓ |
| V-2G, and | 10 | | le refunds, credits, | or offsets of s | state and local | income tax | es (see page 15) |) | 10 | | — |
| 099-R here. | 11 | _ | ny received | | | | | | 11 | | \leftarrow |
| you did not | 12 | | tes income or (loss) | | | | | | 12 | 44.65-3 | - |
| eta W-2,see ege 14. | 13 14 | | il gain or (loss). If n gains or (losses), A | | | ee page 1 | 5) | - • | 13 | (1,500) | ' - |
| _ | 16 | | gans or (losses), A RA distributions | ilach Form 47 | i | A Town | ole amount (see pa | Ma 164 | 15b | | |
| nclose, but do | 16 | | ensions and annulties | 16a | | | ole amount (see pa | | 18b | | |
| ot attach, your ayment and | 17 | Rental | real estate, royaltic | s, partnership | s, S corporation | | | | 17 | 40,000 | |
| ayment | 18 | | ncome or (loss). At | | | | | | 18 | | \square |
| oucher. See age 33. | 19 | | oloyment compens | | е 17).,. | | | | 19 | | ــــــ |
| _ | 20 | | security benefits | 20a | | _ b Taxad | ole amount (see pa | ige 18) | 206 | | — |
| | 21 22 | Other i | income. List type a e amounts in the fau | und armount—e Lidaht columns | ise page 18 for Frag 7 thems | nh 21 This | la veur indult la co | | 21 | 1111 - | — |
| | 29 | | RA deduction (see | | 101 11100 1 (1110 <u>0</u> | 23a | | 1 | 22 | 44,000 | |
| djustments | | | e's IRA deduction (| | | 23b | | + | | | |
| Income | 24 | | expenses. Attach | | | 24 | | \top | | | 1 |
| | 25 | | alf of self-employm | | | 25 | | | | | 1 |
| | 26 | | nployed health insu | | ion (see page : | 21) 26 | | | | | |
| | 27 | | & self-employed S | | | - ' | | | | | |
| | 28 | | on early withdraw | | | . 25 | | - | | | |
| | 29 30 | | paid. Recipient's SS | | | | <u> </u> | ـــِــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ | | | |
| djusted | | | es 23a through 29 | | | | . 4no 4 | <u>, Þ</u> | 30 | | — |
| 7038 ncom | 31 18 | ouotraci with you | l line 30 from line 22. I (less than \$9,230 if a | inis is your adj i a child didn't iw | space gross because with vigul, see " | u. If less tha armed incom | n \$26,673 and a chi Na Credit" on name 1 | iid (ived 27 ► |] ,, [| 4 4000 | |
| nreem | | | 40,500 H I | | Cat. No. 113208 | | - suscer ou bate a | | 31 | Form 1040 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | 70mi 19 70 | (IARC) |

| Form 1040 (1995) |) | | | | | | | P | uge 2 |
|-------------------------------|----------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------|------------------|----------------|------------|----------------------|------------|
| Tov | 32 | Amount from line 31 (adjusted gross income) | | | | | 32 | 44,000 | |
| Tax Compu- | 33a | | ise was | 65 or old: | er, 🔲 I | Blind. | | | |
| tation | | Add the number of boxes checked above and enter the | total he | re | ► | 33a | | | |
| Cation | Þ | If your parent (or someone else) can claim you as a dep | endent, | check he | ne , 🕨 | 33b 🔲 | | | |
| (See page 23.) | c | If you are married filing separately and your spouse item you are a dual-status elien, see page 23 and check here | | ductions o | х ► | 33c 🗌 | | | |
| | 34 | Enter the larger of your: Remized deductions from Schedule A, line 2 | ing state ofind you uction is Qualifying | our stands zero. ng widow(| er)—\$6, | ection. | 34 | 24,120 | |
| | 35 | ● Head of household—\$5,750 ● Married fill Subtract line 34 from line 32 | ling sepe | arately—5 | 3,275 | , | 35 | 19.880 | |
| | 36 | If line 32 is \$86,025 or less, multiply \$2,500 by the total | number | of even | Minne cl | simed on | | | |
| | | line 6e. If Ilne 32 is over \$86,025, see the worksheet on | | | | | 36 | 2. 500 | |
| If you want | 37 | Taxable Income. Subtract line 36 from line 35. If line 36 | is mon | e than line | 35, ent | ter -0 | 37 | 17.380 | |
| the IRS to | 38 | Tax. Check if from a Tax Table, b X Tax Rate Sch | edules, (| c 🗆 Capita | al Gain T | ax Work- | | • | |
| figure your tax, see | | sheet, or d Form 8615 (see page 24). Amount from I | 38 | 2,607 | | | | | |
| page 35. | 30 | Additional taxes. Check if from a Form 4970 b | 39 | | | | | | |
| | 40 | Add lines 38 and 39 | <u> </u> | | | <u> </u> | 40 | 2,607 | |
| Credits | 41 | Credit for child and dependent care expenses. Attach Form | 2441 | 41 | | | | · | |
| 0,00 | 42 | Credit for the elderly or the disabled. Attach Schedule F | ١, . | 42 | | | | | |
| (See page 24.) | 43 | Foreign tax credit. Attach Form 1116 | | 43 | | | | | |
| , | 44 | Other credits (see page 25). Check if from a Form S | | | | | | | |
| | | b Form 8396 c Form 8801 d Form (specify) | | 44 | | | | | |
| | 45 46 | Add lines 41 through 44 | 40 654 | | | | 45 | 2 / 27 | - |
| | | | 40, 611 | ы -u- , | <u> </u> | | 48 | 2.607 | |
| Other | 47 | Self-employment tax. Attach Schedule SE | • • | | | | 48 | | |
| Taxes | 48 49 | Alternative minimum tax. Attach Form 6251 Recapture taxes. Check if from a Form 4255 b Form Form 1 | | | | | 49 | | |
| (See page | 50 | Social security and Medicare tax on tip Income not reported | | | | | 50 | - | |
| 25.) | 51 | Tax on qualified retirement plans, including IRAs. If requ | • | • | | 4137 . | 51 | | |
| | 52 | Advance earned income credit payments from Form W- | • | acii romi | 3328 , | | 52 | | _ |
| | 53 | | | | | | 53 | | _ |
| | 54 | Add lines 46 through 53. This is your total tax, | | | | | 54 | 2.607 | _ |
| Daumania | 55 | Federal income tax withheld. If any is from Form(s) 1099, check | | 55 | | | | | |
| Payments | 56 | 1995 estimated tax payments and amount applied from 1994 re | turn, | 56 | 2.4 | 100 | | | |
| Attach | 57 | Earned Income credit. Attach Schedule EIC if you have a qua child. Nontaxable samed income: amount | ilfying | | | | | | : |
| Forms W-2, | | and type ▶ | | 57 | | | | | |
| W-2G, and 1099-R on | 68 | Amount paid with Form 4868 (extension request) | | 58 | | | | | |
| the front. | 59 | Excess social security and RRTA tax withheld (see page | | 59 | | | | | |
| | 60 61 | Other payments. Check if from a Form 2439 b Form | | 60 | | <u> </u> | | 3 // 00 | |
| | | Add lines 55 through 80. These are your total payment | | · · · | <u></u> | <u>, , </u> | 61 | 2,400 | |
| Refund or | 62 | If line 61 is more than line 64, subtract line 54 from line 61. This | is the ar | nount you | OVERPA | d | 62 | | |
| Amount | 63 | Amount of line 62 you want REFUNDED TO YOU. | | ا مم | | , ▶ | 63 | | _ |
| You Dwe | 64 | Amount of line 62 you want APPLIED TO YOUR 1996 ESTIMATEST | | 64 | | | | | |
| | 65 | If line 54 is more than line 61, subtract line 61 from line 5 For details on how to pay and use Form 1040-V, Paym | 4. This is | the AMC | Y TRUK | DU OWE | 65 | 207 | |
| | 66 | Estimated tax penalty (see page 33). Also include on lin | e 65 | 66 | page 33 | ' · · · • | | | IIIII |
| | Unde | penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and | | | ludes end | etetemente - | and to the | | |
| Sign | belief | they are true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other | then taxo | ayer) is but | ed on all | Information of | which pro | parer has any knov | viedgi |
| Here | | Your signature | Date | | Your o | ecupation | | | |
| Keep a copy of this return | 7 | | | | | | | | |
| for your records. | • | Spouse's signature. If a joint return, BOTH must sign. | Date | | Spous | e's occupatio | n | · <u>.</u> | |
| Pald | Prepa | rer's | Date | | | | Pres | perer's social secur | ity no |
| Preparer's | signa | | | | Check self-en | nployed [| ון נ | 1 1 | |
| Use Only | Firm's | name (or yours | | | | EIN | | 1 | |
| OSE OHLY | addre | employed) and | | | | ZiP code | | | |

SCHEDULES A&B

(Form 1040)

Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service (T)

Schedule A-ltemized Deductions

(Schedule B is on back)

► Attach to Form 1040. ► See instructions for Schedules A and B (Form 1040).

0MB No. 1545-0074

Attachment Sequence No. 07

| Name(s) shown or | п Бога | ···· | | Your socia | security number |
|-----------------------------------|----------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------|---------------|-----------------|
| | | Thomas Smith Bankruptcy Estate | · | 00 | 00 00000 |
| Medical | | Caution: Do not include expenses reimbursed or paid by others. | | | |
| and | 1 | Medical and dental expenses (see page A-1) . | 1 | |] |
| Dental | 2 | Enter amount from Form 1040, line 32. 2 | | | |
| Expenses | 3 | Multiply line 2 above by 7.5% (.075) | 3 | | |
| | 4 | Subtract line 3 from line 1. If line 3 is more than line 1, e | , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , | 4 | |
| Taxes You | 5 | State and local income taxes | 5 1,000 | | 1 |
| Paid | 6 | Real estate taxes (see page A-2) , , , | 6 4,000 | | |
| (See | 7 | Personal property taxes | 7 | | 1 |
| page A-1.) | В | Other taxes. List type and amount ▶ | 8 | | į |
| | 9 | Add lines 5 through 8 | | 9 | 5000 |
| Interest | 10 | Home mortgage interest and points reported to you on Form 1098 | 10 10000 | | |
| You Paid | 11 | Home mortgage interest not reported to you on Form 1098. If paid | | | |
| (See | | to the person from whom you bought the home, see page A-3 | | | |
| page A-2.) | | and show that person's name, identifying no., and address | | | |
| | | *************************************** | | | |
| | | | | | ļ |
| Note: Personal | | | 11 | | } |
| interest is | 12 | Points not reported to you on Form 1098. See page A-3 for special rules | 12 | | |
| deductible. | 13 | Investment interest. If required, attach Form 4952. (See | | | ļ |
| | | page A-3.) | 13 | | . |
| | 14 | Add lines 10 through 13 | | 14 | 10,000 |
| Gifts to Charity | 15 | Gifts by cash or check. If you made any gift of \$250 or more, see page A-3 | 15 | | |
| If you made a | 16 | Other than by cash or check. If any gift of \$250 or more, | | | |
| gift and got a benefit for it. | | see page A-3. If over \$500, you MUST attach Form 8283 | 16 | | |
| see page A-3. | 17 | Carryover from prior year | 17 | | |
| Casualty and | 18 | Add lines 15 through 17 | <u> </u> | 18 | |
| Theft Losses | 19 | Casualty or theft loss(es). Attach Form 4684. (See page | A-4.1 | 19 | |
| Job Expenses | 20 | Unreimbursed employee expenses—job travel, union | | | |
| and Most | | dues, job education, etc. If required, you MUST attach | | | |
| Other | | Form 2106 or 2106-EZ. (See page A-5.) ▶ | | | † |
| Miscellaneous | | 154 | | | i |
| Deductions | | | 20 | | |
| | 21 | Tax preparation fees | 21 | | |
| (See | 22 | Other expenses—investment, safe deposit box, etc. List | | | |
| page A-5 for expenses to | | type and amount | | | |
| deduct here.) | | BXIFT Administrative Expenses | 22 /0,000 | | |
| | 23 | Add lines 20 through 22 | 23 10,000 | | |
| | 24 25 | Enter amount from Form 1040, line 32. 24 74,000 | 25 880 | | |
| | 26 | Multiply line 24 above by 2% (.02) | | 26 | 9,120 |
| Other | 27 | Other—from list on page A-5. List type and amount | 50, 6/116/ -0- | | 7,180 |
| Miscellaneous Deductions | | Commitment on page A.S. List type and amount P | | | |
| | | 1 | | 27 | _ |
| Total Itemized | 28 | Is Form 1040, line 32, over \$114,700 (over \$57,350 if me | | | |
| Deductions | | NO. Your deduction is not limited. Add the amounts in the for lines 4 through 27. Also, enter on Form 1040, line | | 00 | 24/12/0 |
| | | this amount or your standard deduction. | . ^-, nio imigor (ii } . ▶ | 28 | 24,120 |
| | | YES. Your deduction may be limited. See page A-5 for the | amount to enter. | | |
| | | | | THE PROPERTY. | |

Your social security number

Thomas Smith Bankruptey Estate Schedule B—Interest and Dividend Income

00 000000 Attachment Sequence No. 08

| | | General B- Interest and Divisoria mounts | | and an | |
|-----------------------------------------------|--------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|--------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|
| Part I | | et if you had over \$400 in taxable interest income, you must also complete Part III. | | | |
| interest income | 1 | List name of payer, if any interest is from a seller-financed mortgage and the buyer used the property as a personal residence, see page B-1 and list this | | Amount | |
| (See pages 15 and B-1.) | | interest first. Also, show that buyer's social security number and address Certificate of Deposit XYZ Bank | | 5,500 | |
| Note: If you received a Form | | | | | |
| 1099-INT, Form 1099-OID, or | | | | | |
| substitute | | | 1 | | |
| a brokerage firm, list the firm's | | | | | |
| name as the payer and enter | | | | | |
| the total interest shown on that form. | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | _ | Add the amounts on line 1 | 2 | <u>5,500</u> | ļ |
| | 3 | Excludable interest on series EE U.S. savings bonds issued after 1989 from Form 8815, line 14. You MUST attach Form 8815 to Form 1040 | 3 | | |
| | | Subtract line 3 from line 2. Enter the result here and on Form 1040, line 8a ▶ | 4 | 5,500 | |
| Part II | Not | e: If you had over \$400 in gross dividends and/or other distributions on stock, you mus | t a/so d | | |
| Dividend Income | 6 | List name of payer. Include gross dividends and/or other distributions on stock here. Any capital gain distributions and nontaxable distributions will be deducted | | Amount | |
| (See | | on lines 7 and 8 > | | | |
| pages 15 and B-1.) | | | | | |
| 4110 D-11) | | | | | - |
| | | | | | |
| Note: If you | | | | | |
| received a Form 1099-DIV or | | | 5 | | |
| substitute statement from | | ······ | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| a brokerage | | | | | |
| firm, list the firm's name as | | ······································ | | | |
| the payer and enter the total dividends | | | | | |
| shown on that | ۰ | Add the annual - P- P | 6 | - | |
| form, | 6 7 | Add the amounts on line 5 | | | |
| | 8 | Nontaxable distributions. (See the inst. for Form 1040, (ine 9.) | | | |
| | 9 | Add lines 7 and B | 9 | | |
| | 10 | Subtract line 9 from line 6. Enter the result here and on Form 1040, line 9. "If you do not need Schedule D to report any other gains or losses, see the instructions for Form 1040, line 13, on page 16. | 10 | | <u> </u> |
| Part III Foreign | | bu had over \$400 of interest or dividends or had a foreign account or were a grantor of a foreign trust, you must complete this part. | , or a t | ransieror Yes | No |
| Accounts and | | At any time during 1995, did you have an interest in or a signature or other authorit account in a foreign country, such as a bank account, securitles account, o | • | | |
| Trusts | h | account? See page B-2 for exceptions and filing requirements for Form TD F 90 If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country > | | | X |
| (See page 8-2.) | 12 | | , whet | her or not | |
| | | you have any beneficial interest in it? If "Yes." you may have to file Form 3520. | | | × |

Arinted on recycled paper

Schedule 5 (Form 1040) 1995

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Form 1040 instructions.

SCHEDULE D (Form 1040)

Capital Gains and Losses

See Instructions for Schedule D (Form 1040).

OMB No. 1545-0074

Department of the Treasury internal Revenue Service Name(s) shown on Form 1040 Attach to Form 1040.

Use lines 20 and 22 for more space to list transactions for lines 1 and 9.

Sequence No. 12 Your social security number

Thomas Smith Bankruptcy Estate.
Short-Term Capital Gains and Losses—Assets Held One Year or Less 00:00:0000 Part I (fj LOSS If (e) is more than (d), subtract (d) from (e) (g) GAIN If (d) is more than (e) Cost or other basis (a) Description of (b) Date (c) Date sold (Mo., day, yr.) (d) Sales price property (Example: 100 sh. XYZ Co.) acquired (Mo., day, yr. (see page D-3) subtract (e) from (d) (see page D-3) Enter your short-term totals, if any, from Total short-term sales price amounts. Add column (d) of lines 1 and 2 . . . Short-term gain from Forms 2119 and 6252, and short-term gain or loss from Forms 4684, 6781, and 8824 Net short-term gain or loss from partnerships, S corporations, estates, and 5 trusts from Schedule(s) K-1 Short-term capital loss carryover. Enter the argainst theny, from line 9 of your 1994 Capital Loss Carryover Worksheet Add lines 1 through 6 in columns 10 and Net short-term capital ine columns (f) Assets Held More Than One Year Part II vous logg-term otal long-term sales price amoun Add column (d) of lines 9 ar 10 . Gain from Form 4797; Friedrich gain from Forms 2119, 2439, and 6252; and long-term gain or loss from Forms 4684, 6781, and 8824 12 175,000 12 13 Net long-term gain or loss from partnerships, S corporations, estates, and 13 Capital gain distributions Long-term capital loss carryover. Enter the amount, if any, from line 14 of 150000 your 1994 Capital Loss Carryover Worksheet 80.000 Add lines 9 through 15 in columns (f) and (g) 17 Net long-term capital gain or (loss). Combine columns (f) and (g) of line 16 Part III Summary of Parts I and II Combine lines 8 and 17. If a loss, go to line 19. If a gain, enter the gain on Form 1040, line 13. 18 Note: If both lines 17 and 18 are gains, see the Capital Gain Tax Worksheet on page 24 If line 18 is a loss, enter here and as a (loss) on Form 1040, line 13, the smaller of these losses: a The loss on line 18; or 500 Note: See the Capital Loss Carryover Worksheet on page D-3 if the loss on line 18 exceeds the loss on line 19 or if Form 1040, line 35, is a loss. For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Form 1040 Instructions. Cet. No. 11338H Schedule D (Form 1040) 1995

SCHEDULE E (Form 1040)

Supplemental Income and Loss

(From rental real estate, royalties, partnerships, S corporations, estates, trusts, REMICs, etc.)

OMB No. 1545-0074

Department of the Treasury Internet Revenue Service

► Attach to Form 1040 or Form 1041. ► See Instructions for Schedule E (Form 1040).

Attachment Sequence No. 13

Schedule E (Form 1040) 1995

| Ngr | e(s) shown on return | | | | | | - | Your so | cial secu | ity nur | nber |
|--------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------|------------------|------------------|------------|---------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|----------|------------------------|----------|--------------|
| | Thomas Smit | h B | enKruptcy_ | Estate | | | | | | 000 | |
| Pΰ | rt I Income or Loss From Rent | al Rei | al Estate and F | Royalties N | | | | | | | |
| _ | personal property on Schedule | | | | m ren | tal income | or loss from For | m 4835 c | n page 2 | , line : | 39. |
| 1 | Show the kind and location of each | rente | ¥ real estate p | roperty: | _ 2 | | rental real es | | | Yes | No |
| A | Commercial Rental Rea | | | | | | listed on line a mily use it for | | | ' | |
| | Anywhere USA 00000 | <u> </u> | | | _ | | s for more that | | al 🔼 | ļ | LX_ |
| В | , , | | | | | | of 14 days or 1 | | ne | | |
| | | | | | 4 | | s rented at fai | | В | | <u> </u> |
| C | | | | | | value du page E-1 | ring the tax ye | ary (See | 1 | | |
| | | - | | | | | | | <u></u> | <u> </u> | L |
| Inc | ome: | | | <u> </u> | opert B | | C | - (Add | Tota columns | . – | nd CJ |
| _ | | | A | | | | | + - | | | |
| 3 | Rents received | 3 | 75,000 | | | +-+ | | 3 4 | | | |
| 4 | | - | | - - | | + | | | | | \vdash |
| | penses: | 5 | | | | |] | | | | |
| 5 | Advertising | 6 | | - | | 1 | | | | | |
| 9 | Auto and travel (see page E-2) . | 7 | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 8 | Cleaning and maintenance | 8 | | | | | | | | | |
| 9 | Insurance | 9 | | | | † | | | | | |
| 10 | Legal and other professional fees | 10 | | | | | | | | | |
| 11 | Management fees | 11 | | | | | | | | | |
| 12 | Mortgage interest paid to banks, | | | | | | | | | | |
| | etc. (see page E-2) | 12 | 10,000 | | | | | 12 | | | |
| 13 | Other interest | 13 | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 | Repairs | 14 | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 | Supplies | 15 | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | 1 |
| 16 | Taxes | 16 | 20,000 | | | | | | | | |
| 17 | Utilities | 17 | | | | | | | | | |
| 18 | Other (list) | | | | | | . | | | | 1 |
| | | | | | | \bot | | | | | |
| | *************************************** | 18 | | | | | | | | | |
| | *************************************** | | | | | 1 | | | | | |
| _ | | 40 | 2.000 | | | + + | | | | | |
| 19 | | 19 | 30000 | | | | | 19 | | | ├─ |
| 20 | Depreciation expense or depletion | 20 | 5.000 | | | | | 20 | | | |
| 21 | (see page E-2). Total expenses. Add lines 19 and 20 | 21 | 35,000 | | | | | | | | \vdash |
| | Income or (loss) from rental real | - | - VS,000 | | | | | | | | |
| | estate or royalty properties. | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Subtract line 21 from line 3 (rents) | | | | | | | | | | |
| | or line 4 (royalties). If the result is a (loss), see page E-2 to find out | | 1 | | | | | | | | |
| | if you must file Form 6198. | 22 | 40,000 | | | | | | | | |
| 23 | | | | | | | · | | | | |
| | Caution: Your rental real estate | | | | | | | | | | |
| | loss on line 22 may be limited. See | | 1 | | | | | | | | |
| | page E-3 to find out if you must file Form 8582. Real estate | | 1 1 | | | | | | | | |
| | professionals must complete line | | ! | | | | | | | | |
| | 42 on page 2 , | 23 | <u> (</u> |)(| | <u>) (</u> | | | | | |
| 24 | | | | | | | | 24 | 40,0 | 000 | <u> </u> |
| 25 | | | | | | | | | <u>{</u> | | |
| 26 | Total rental real estate and royalty in | | | | | | | | | | |
| | If Parts II, III, IV, and line 39 on pag | | | | | s amount | on Form 1040 | | H۸ | 800 | |
| | line 17. Otherwise, include this amo | ALBIT II | iure tokalorilli | ne eu on pa | yo ∠ | | | . 26 | 70. | 800 | I |

Cet. No. 11344L

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Form 1940 Instructions.

Form 2119 |

Sale of Your Home

OMB No. 1545-0072 1005

| | | ► Attach to Form 1040 for year of sale. | | | |
|-----------|-------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|
| | ment of the Treasury I Revenue Service | See separate instructions. Please print or type. | l ŝ | ttachment equence No. 2 0 |) |
| | | . If a joint return, also give apouse's name and initial. Last name You | | security number | |
| | | Thomas Smith Bankrupter Estate | | 00: 00000 | |
| E311 | in Your Addre | | | ocial security nur | |
| | If You Are Fil | - ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' | : | : | |
| | s Form by Itse | | <u>.</u> | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | — |
| an | d Not With You | T City, town or post onus, state, and zer coole | | | |
| 0 | Tax Return | 0-1- | | | |
| Par | | ······································ | T | | |
| 1 | Date your fo | mer main home was sold (month, day, year) | 09 | | |
| 2 | | ught or built a new main home? | | 🗌 Yes 🛛 | No |
| 3 | If any part of | either main home was ever rented out or used for business, check here $ ightlest$ and sec | e page | 3. | |
| 4 | Selling price | of home. Do not include personal property items you sold with your home 🔒 🛴 🚣 | - | 200,000 | |
| 5 | Expense of s | ale (see page 3) | | 20.00 0 | |
| 6 | Subtract line | 5 from line 4 | | 180.000 | |
| 7 | Adjusted bas | is of home sold (see page 3) | | 130,000 | |
| B | Gain on sale | Subtract line 7 from line 6 | | 50,000 | |
| | | Marie Branch (18 Const Const Wilson Words Words and the Point III on Doub III subtished | | ation If limp (7 |) i |
| | ls line 8 | Yes If line 2 is "Yes," you must go to Part II or Part III, whiche "No," go to line 9. | ever ap | piles. If line 2 | 2 15 |
| | more than zero? | 140, go to line s. | | | |
| | Zeror | No Stop; see Loss on the Sale of Your Home on page 1. | | | |
| 9 | If you haven | | 1)? | ☐ Yes 🏻 | No |
| _ | | "Yes," stop here, attach this form to your return, and see Additional Filing Requireme | | | |
| | | "No," you must go to Part II or Part III, whichever applies. | | | |
| Par | | me Exclusion of Gain for People Age 55 or Older—By completing this part, y | | | take |
| | the one | time exclusion (see page 2). If you are not electing to take the exclusion, go to | Part I | ll now. | |
| 10 | Who was ac | s 55 or older on the date of sale? | DOUSE | ☐ Both of v | vou |
| 11 | - | n who was 55 or older own and use the property as his or her main home for a total of at l | - | Dom or , | , |
| • • | | i-year period before the sale? See page 2 for exceptions. If "No," go to Part III now . | Gast 3 | ☐ Yes ☐ | No |
| 12 | | f sale, who owned the home? | 200166 | Both of y | |
| 13 | | ty number of spouse at the time of sale if you had a different spouse from the | Pouse | Doi:: 51) | ,00 |
| | | you were not married at the time of sale, enter "None" | . | : : | |
| 14 | | nter the smaller of line 8 or \$125,000 (\$62,500 if married filing separate return). | 1 | | |
| • • | Then, go to | | . | 1 | |
| Par | | ed Sales Price, Taxable Gain, and Adjusted Basis of New Home | | | |
| 15 | | lank, enter the amount from line 8. Otherwise, subtract line 14 from line 815 | | 50.000 | |
| 149 | | and the street for th | | | |
| | | s zero, stop and attach this form to your return. | | | |
| | | s more than zero and line 2 is "Yes," go to line 16 now. | | | |
| | - | reporting this sale on the installment method, stop and see page 4. | | | |
| 16 | | stop and enter the amount from line 15 on Schedule D, col. (g), line 4 or line 12. | en all all a | umanning | must, |
| _ | | contract (see page 1 to time minute) | | | |
| 17 10 | | delle, onto allocali non ino to. Otroi vido, ada inigo 14 dira 10 | | | |
| 18 10- | Acjusted sa | | | | |
| 19a | - | The first form of the first first from the first | | | |
| 20 | | 100 110111 1110 10.11 1200 01 1233, 01101 0 | | | |
| 21 | | Elitar the simulation of this to of this Est. | | | HHH |
| | | s zero, go to line 22 and attach this form to your return. | | | |
| | - | porting this sale on the installment method, see the line 15 instructions and go to line 22. | | | |
| | | nter the amount from line 21 on Schedule D, coi. (g), line 4 or line 12, and go to line 22. | illiiiinin. | | mill) |
| 22 22 | Postponed g | ain. Subtract line 21 from line 15 | _ | | |
| <u>23</u> | Adjusted be | sis of new home. Subtract line 22 from line 19b | | n and ballet it is | 4 |
| | | der penantes of perjury, I declare that I have examined this form, including attachments, and to the dest of my rect, and complete. | M KOWIECC | per autra identett, 11 15 | a 17 0 0, |
| | re Filing | Your signature Date Spouse's signature | | Date | |
| | form by | i. | | | |
| WILL | Your Tax | | | | |
| | Return / | If a joint return, both must sign. | | | |

If a joint return, both must sign. For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.

Cat. No. 11710J

Form 2119 (1995)

Sales of Business Property

(Also involuntary Conversions and Recapture Amounts Under Sections 179 and 280F(b)(2)

► Attach to your tax return.

> See separate instructions.

OMB No. 1545-0184

Department of the Treesu Internal Revenue Service identifying number Name(s) shown on return 00-0000000 Bankruptcy Estate Thomas Smith Enter here the gross proceeds from the sale or exchange of real estate reported to you for 1995 on Form(s) 1099-S 280 000 (or a substitute statement) that you will be including on line 2, 11, or 22 Sales or Exchanges of Property Used in a Trade or Business and Involuntary Conversions From Other Than Casualty or Theft-Property Held More Than 1 Year (f) min " (f) Cost or other basis, plus improvements and (a) Depreciation allowed or allowable since (h) GAIN ((d) plus (e) minus (f) (d) Gross sale (b) Date acquired (mo., day, yr.) (c) Date sold (mo., day, yr.)) minus the sum of (d) and (e)) (a) Description of price property expense of sale acquisition 2 3 Gein, if any, from Form 4684, line 39 4 Section 1231 gain from installment sales from Form 6252, line 26 or 37 5. Section 1231 gain or (loss) from like-kind exchanges from Form 8824 . 125.000 6 Gain, if any, from line 34, from other than casualty or theft 125,000 125000 Combine columns (g) and (h) of line 7. Enter gain or (loss) here, and on the appropriate line as follows: Partnerships -- Enter the gain or (loss) on Form 1065, Schedule K, line 6. Sklp lines 9, 10, 12, and 13 below. S corporations—Report the gain or (loss) following the instructions for Form 1120S, Schedule K, fines 5 and 6. Skip lines 9, 10, 12, and 13 below, unless line 8 is a gain and the S corporation is subject to the capital gains tax. All others—If line 8 is zero or a loss, enter the amount on line 12 below and skip lines 9 and 10. If line 8 is a gain and you did not have any prior year section 1231 losses, or they were recaptured in an earlier year, enter the gain as a long-term capital gain on Schedule D and skip lines 9, 10, and 13 below. 9 Nonrecaptured net section 1231 losses from prior years (see instructions) 125000 Subtract line 9 from line 8. If zero or less, enter -0-. Also enter on the appropriate line as follows (see instructions): S corporations—Enter this amount on Schedule D (Form 1120S), line 13, and skip lines 12 and 13 below. All others—If line 10 is zero, enter the amount from line 8 on line 13 below. If line 10 is more than zero, enter the amount from line 9 on line 13 below, and enter the amount from line 10 as a long-term capital gain on Schedule D. Part II Ordinary Gains and Losses Ordinary gains and losses not included on lines 12 through 18 (include property held 1 year or less): 12 12 Loss, if any, from line 8 13 13 Gain, if any, from line 8, or amount from line 9 if applicable 14 14 15 Net gain or (loss) from Form 4884, lines 31 and 38a . . 15 16 16 Ordinary gain from installment sales from Form 6252, line 25 or 36. 17 17 Ordinary gain or (loss) from like-kind exchanges from Form 8824 Recepture of section 179 expense deduction for partners and S corporation shareholders from 18 18 property dispositions by partnerships and S corporations (see instructions) 19 10 Add lines 11 through 18 in columns (g) and (h) , , , , 20 20 Combine columns (g) and (h) of line 19. Enter gain or (loss) here, and on the appropriate line as follows: For all except individual returns: Enter the gain or (loss) from line 20 on the return being filed. **b** For Individual returns: (1) If the loss on line 12 includes a loss from Form 4684, line 35, column (b)(II), enter that part of the loss here and 20b(1) on line 22 of Schedule A (Form 1040), Identify as from "Form 4797, line 20b(1)." See instructions (2) Redetermine the gain or floes) on line 20, excluding the loss, if any, on line 20b(1). Enter here and on Form 1040, line 14

| H | (a) Description of section 1245, 1250, 1252, 1254, or 1255 p | ro perty: | | | (b) Date acquired (mo., day, yr.) | (c) Date sold (mo., day, yr.) |
|----------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|--------------------|--------------|--------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|
| A | Commercial Real Estate - Bldg | | | | 07-01-83 | 07-01-95 |
| <u>B</u> | | | | | <u> </u> | |
| c | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| D | Beleta Burn 344 Manush 34B to those columns | ▶ [| Property A | Property B | Property C | Property D |
| _ | Relate lines 21A through 21D to these columns | 22 | 280,000 | r roperty D | Troparty 0 | 11000103 |
| 2 | Gross sales price (Note: See line 1 before completing.) | 23 | 276.000 | | | |
| 3 4 | Cost or other basis plus expense of sale | 24 | 120,000 | | | |
| 5 | Adjusted basis. Subtract line 24 from line 23 | 25 | 155 000 | | 1 | |
| _ | | | | | | |
| 6 | Total gain. Subtract line 25 from line 22 | 26 | 125000 | | | |
| 7 | N section 1245 property: | | • | | | |
| | Depreciation allowed or allowable from line 24 | 27a | | | | |
| b | Enter the smaller of line 28 or 27a | 27b | | | | |
| 8 | Weaction 1250 property: If straight line depreciation was used, enter -0- on line 26g, except for a corporation subject to section 291. | | | | | |
| | Additional depreciation after 1975 (see instructions) | 28a | | | | |
| b | Applicable percentage multiplied by the smaller of line 26 or line 28a (see instructions) | 28b | | | | |
| C | Subtract line 28s from line 28. If residential rental property or line 26 is not more than line 28s, skip lines 28d and 28s | 28c | <u>.</u> | | | |
| d | Additional depreciation after 1969 and before 1976 | 28d | | - | | |
| • | Enter the amailor of line 28c or 28d | 28e | | | | |
| 1 | Section 291 amount (corporations only) | 20f | | | <u> </u> | |
| | | | | | | |
| 9 | Add lines 28b, 28e, and 28f | 28g | -0- | | | |
| 9 | If section 1252 property: Skip this section if you did not dispose of farmland or if this form is being completed for a partnership. | | | | | |
| • | Soil, water, and land clearing expenses | 29e | | | | |
| ¢ | Line 29a multiplied by applicable percentage (see instructions) Enter the smaller of line 26 or 29b | 29b | | | | |
| 0 | If section 1254 property: | | I | | | |
| a | intangible drilling and development costs, expenditures for | 1 1 | [| | | |
| | development of mines and other natural deposits, and | | | | | |
| _ | mining exploration costs (see instructions) | 30a | | | | |
| ь | Enter the smeller of line 26 or 30a | 30b | | ··········· | ļ | |
| 1 | If section 1255 property: | | 1 | | | |
| • | Applicable percentage of payments excluded from income | | | | | 1 |
| h | under section 126 (see instructions) Enter the smaller of line 26 or 31a (see instructions) | 31a 31b | | | | - |
| | nmary of Part III Gains. Complete property colur | | Abaniah Daha | | | |
| _ | what or Fact in Gairle. Complete property colu | 11115 A | urrough D, thre | Jugn Ine 310 | p belore going t | o line 32. |
| 2 | Total gains for all properties. Add property columns A throug | ;h D, line | e 26 | | 32 | 125,00 |
| _ | | | | | | _ |
| 3 | Add property columns A through D, lines 27b, 28g, 29c, 30b | , and 31 | ib. Enter here and | on line 14 | 33 | -0- |
| 4 | Subtract line 33 from line 32. Enter the portion from casualt from other than casualty or their on Form 4797, line 8. | | | | | 125.00 |
| Pa | Recapture Amounts Under Sections 179 See instructions. | | 80F(b)(2) Whe | | Use Drops to S | |
| | | | | | (a) Section 179 | (b) Section 280F(b)(2) |
| 5 | Section 179 expense deduction or depreciation allowable in | adar | | 38 | | 1 |
| 6 | Recomputed depreciation. See instructions | huor Age | ma | 36 | | |
| 7 | Recapture emount, Subtract line 36 from line 35. See the ins | | | | + | |

Form 4562

Depreciation and Amortization (including information on Listed Property)

| OMB | No. | 1545-017 |
|-----|------------|----------|
| < | 1 @ | 95 |

| Butter B | | nent of the Treesury Revenue Service (T) | | ► See separat | e instructions. | ► Attach this form | to your return | | | Attachment Sequence No. 67 |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|---------------------------------------------|----------------|--------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|------------------|------------|----------------------------------------------------|
| Election To Expense Certain Tangible Property (Section 179) (Note: If you have any "Listed Property: Complete Part V before you can be part V before Y bef | | | | | Business or | activity to which this fo | om relates | | \neg | |
| Election To Expanse Certain Tangible Property (Section 179) (Note: If you have any "Listed Property," complete Part V before you complete Part I) 1 Maximum dollar limitation. If an enterprise zone business, see page 1 of the instructions. 2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service during the tax year. See page 2 of the instructions. 3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2, If zero or less, enter -0- 4. 5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 1 from line 2, If zero or less, enter -0- 4. 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1, If zero or less, enter -0- 1. 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 2, If zero or less, enter -0- 1. 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 . 9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of subble income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions . 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction And I see a serior of the see instructions . 14 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of subble income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions . 15 Total elected cost of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 14 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of subble income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions . 16 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 18 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 19 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction. And lines 9 and 10, less line 12 \(\) 13. 11 Total Act of the instructions and the computation of property used for instructions are property. 12 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. 14 | | | anKeist | en Fitate | Commen | cial Rental Real | Estate | | | 00-0000000 |
| Maximum dollar limitation. If an enterprise zone business, see page 1 of the instructions. 1 Maximum dollar limitation if an enterprise zone business, see page 2 of the instructions. 2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service during the tax year. See page 2 of the instructions. 3 \$200,000 4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. if zero or less, enter -0- 5 Dollar instruction subtract line 3 from line 2. if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Policy instruction of property leaf filling separately, see page 2 of the instructions of line 1. if zero or less, enter -0- 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27. 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27. 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 5 and 7 8 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 5 and 7 8 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 5 and 7 8 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 5 and 7 8 9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 5 in section 179 sequence deduction the 1994. See page 2 of the instructions 10 10 11 Taxable income (not lines this narro) in line 5 see instructions 11 12 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 12 13 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 | | Flaction | To Expe | nee Certain | Tanoible Prope | rty (Section 179 | (Note: If y | ou hav | ∕e a | ny "Listed Property," |
| 1 Maximum dollar limitation. If an enterprise zone business, see page 1 of the instructions. 2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service during the tax year. See page 2 of the instructions. 3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation. In limitation in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2, if zero or less, enter -0- 4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 5 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 5 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 5 from line 1, if zero or less, enter -0- 6 Reduction of sealowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions. Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 5 (see instructions). Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 5 (see instructions). Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 5 (see instructions). Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 5 (see instructions). Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 5 (see instructions). Dollar limitation line 1, if zero or less, enter sealor or line 1, if zero or line 1, if | | complete | Part V b | efore you co | mplete Part I.) | • • | | | | |
| 2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service during the tax year. See page 2 of the instructions 3 Treeshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation 4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0- 5 Doilar intration for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0- 6 If married filling separately, see page 2 of the instructions (a) Description of property (b) Cost (c) Bacted cost 8 Description of property (c) Cost (d) Bacted cost 9 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 (e) Bacted cost 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994, See page 2 of the instructions 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income for less than 2-ray or line 5 (see Instructions) 11 Taxable incores instruction. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 to 11 12 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1994. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 to 11 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1994. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 to 11 14 If you are making the election of entertainment, recreation, or arrusement, instead, use Part VI for lesson property. 14 If you are making the election under section 1698(4) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 15 3-year property 15 3-year property 16 1-year property 17 20-year prope | 1 | | | | | see page 1 of the | instructions . | . L | 1 | \$17,500 |
| a Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation. 3 \$200,000 4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. if zero or less, enter -0- 4 5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. if zero or less, enter -0 If married filing separately, see page 2 of the instructions 9 Description of property 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions 11 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 12 Section 179 expense deduction. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction for 1994. See page 2 of the instructions. 14 Section 179 expense deduction to 1996. Add line 9 and 10, less line 12 15 Section 179 expense deduction to 1996. Add line 9 and 10, less line 12 16 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 17 Instable income limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 18 Section 179 expense deduction and line 9 and 10, less line 12 19 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 19 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 19 Taxable income finitistion. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 10 Taxable income finitistion. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 11 Taxable income finitistion. Enter the smaller of traxable income (not less than zero) or line 11 | _ | | | | | | | | | |
| 3 \$200,000 4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0- 4 5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0- 15 6 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0- 15 6 Illing separately, see page 2 of the instructions 1. If zero or less, enter -0- 15 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27. 17 8 Total elected coast of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 8 9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of traxible income limitation. Enter the smaller of traxible income limitation | - | | юн тор. | | | | | | 2 | |
| A reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0 If married filing separately, see page 2 of the instructions | 3 | | section 1 | 79 property b | efore reduction in | limitation | | . L | 3 | \$200,000 |
| 5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0. If married 5 (e) Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0. If married 5 (e) Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 27. 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27. 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 . 9 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 . 9 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 . 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions . 11 Taxable horone limitation. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . 12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 . 12 Section 179 expense deduction to 1996. Add lines 9 and 10, lost line 12 lb 13 . Note: Do not use Part II or Part III below for listed property (sutcomobiles, certain other vehicles, cellular telephones, certain computers, or property used for entertainment, regnation, or amusement). Instead, use Part V for fisted property. 14 If you are making the election under section 1690(4) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 15 Carsalication of property . 15 Classification of property . 15 Carsalication of property . 15 Carsalication of property . 16 (1) Morth is box. See page 2 of the instructions. 17 The convertion of property . 18 Poperty . 19 Convertion (f) Method (g) Depreciation selection selection selection selection selection. 19 Carsalication of property . 10 Cycles property . 10 Cycles property . 11 Cycles property . 12 Cycles . MM S/L . 13 Depreciation converted in selection selection selection. 19 Cycles . 10 Cycles property . 11 Cycles . 12 Cycles . MM S/L . 13 Depreciation converted in selection selection selection. 14 If you are making the election selec | 4 | | | | | | | | 4 | , |
| filing separately, see page 2 of the instructions 5 | 5 | Dollar limitation fo | or tax year | . Subtract line | 4 from line 1. If a | ero or less, enter | -0 If married | | | |
| 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27. 7 8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 . 8 9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 . 9 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions . 10 11 Taxable income imitation. Enter the smaller of taxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) . 11 2 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 . 12 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 . 12 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 ▶ 13 14 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 ▶ 13 15 Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 . 12 15 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 ▶ 13 16 Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 . 12 17 Add lines 1 lines | | filing separately, s | see page 2 | of the instru | ctions | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | | 5_ | |
| 7 Listed property. Enter amount from line 27 | | | (a) Descriptio | n of property | | (b) Cost | (c) Elect | ed cost | | |
| The state of the property of the amount in the state of the state of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 9 1 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions 10 11 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of taxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 11 2 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 | 6 | | | | | | | | | |
| The state of the property of the amount in the state of the state of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 9 1 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions 10 11 Taxable income limitation. Enter the smaller of taxable income (not less than zero) or line 5 (see instructions) 11 2 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 | | | | | | ···· | | | | |
| 9 Terrtative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 | 7 | Listed property. E | nter amou | unt from line 2 | 7 | | | | | |
| Carryover of disallowed deduction from 1994. See page 2 of the instructions 10 | 8 | | | | | column (c), lines | 6 and 7 | . - | | |
| 10 Carryover of issanced eduction in 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11 14 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 ▶ 13 15 Note: Do not use Part II or Part III below for listed property (automobiles, cartain other vehicles, cellular telephones, cartain computers, or property used for entertainment, recreation, or amusement, instead, use Part V for listed property. 16 Section A—General Asset Account Election 17 You are making the election under section 168((v) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 18 You are making the election under section 168((v) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 19 You are making the election under section 168((v) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 10 You are making the election under section 168((v) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. 10 Year property 10 Year property 10 Year property 11 Year property 12 Year property 13 Year property 14 Year property 15 Year property 15 Year property 16 Year property 17 Year property 18 Year property 19 Year property 27 Year property 27 Year property 28 Year year year year year year year year into one or more year into one or more year year year year year year year ye | 9 | | | | | | | · - | | |
| 12 Section 179 expense deduction to 1998. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 13 13 13 13 13 14 15 14 15 14 15 15 15 | 10 | Carryover of disal | llowed de | duction from 1 | 1994. See page 2 | of the instructions | ; , , , <i>, ,</i> | · - | | |
| Note: Do not use Part II or Part III below for listed property (automobiles, cartain other vehicles, cellular telephones, certain computers, or property used for entertainment, recreation, or amusement). Instead, use Part V for listed property. MACRS Depreciation For Assets Placed in Service ONLY During Your 1995 Tax Year (Do Not Include Listed Property.) Section A—General Asset Account Election 14 If you are making the election under section 1680(4) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. (a) Classification of property Section B—General Depreciation System (QDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) Section B—General Depreciation System (QDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) 5. 3-year property d 10-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property g Residential rental property The Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16. Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. MM S/L Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17. Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 18. OCR and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995. 17. Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election. 18. OCRS and other depreciation. 19. J. Oce 20. Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 10. Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | Taxable income limit | tation. Ente | r the smaller of t | taxable income (not l | eas than zero) or line | 5 (see instructio | ··/ | | |
| Note: Do not use Part or Par | | | | | | | | | 12 | |
| Cartain computers, or property used for ententainment, recreation, or amusement). Instead, use Part V for listed property. MACRS Depreciation For Assets Placed in Service ONLY During Your 1995 Tax Year (Do Not Include Listed Property.) Section A—General Asset Account Election | | | | | | | | N- de | | |
| MACRS Depreciation For Assets Placed in Service ONLY During Your 1985 Tax Year (Do Not Include Listed Property.) Section A—General Asset Account Election | Note | : Do not use Part | II or Part | iii below for ii: | sted property (auti | omobiles, certain i | otner venicies, | CONUIE Dod 1/ | ar ren | iepnones, lietod proporty |
| Section A—General Asset Account Election | | | | | | | | | | |
| Section A—General Asset Account Election | Par | | | MON FOT AS: | sets Maced in a | SERVICE UNLY D | uring tour i | 380 11 | HX 1 | IBER (DO MOI INCIDUR |
| If you are making the election under section 168(i)(4) to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. (a) Classification of property (b) Month and year placed in general depreciation of property (c) Basic for depreciation (b) Month and year placed in general depreciation system (GDS) (see page 2 of the instructions.) Section B—General Depreciation System (GDS) (see page 2 of the instructions.) 15a 3-year property b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property e 15-year property g Residential rental property 127.5 yrs. MM S/L property 27.5 yrs. MM S/L property 27.5 yrs. MM S/L property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L C 40-year C 40-year C 50S and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | | LIBIOU FI | oper ty.j | Sant | tion A. General A | Asset Account Fi | ection | | | |
| general asset accounts, check this box. See page 2 of the instructions. (b) Month and (c) Basis for deprotection fouriers period in puriod property Section B—General Depreciation System (GDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) 15a 3-year property b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | - | M and manifold to | the election | | | | | the to | | er into one or more |
| (a) Classification of property (b) Month and year placed in service only—see instructions (d) Recovery period Section B—General Depreciation System (GDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) 15a 3-year property b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property e 15-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real 27.5 yrs. MM S/L 27.5 yrs. MM S/L property h Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM S/L MM S/L property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L S/L c 40-year Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | 14 | | | | | | | | . , . | |
| Section B—General Depreciation System (GDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) 15a 3-year property b 5-year property c 7-year property e 15-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. c 40-year 10 Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995. 18 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election. 19 ACRS and other depreciation 19 Include 20. Enter here 20 21 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | | | | (c) Basis for deprecia | tion | | i T | | |
| Section B—General Depreciation System (GDS) (See page 2 of the instructions.) 15a 3-year property b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. MM S/L S-/L S-/L S-/L S-/L Date 111 Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995. 18 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election | | (a) Classification of pro | operty | | | UBE Samuel | (e) Convention | (f) Mel | thod | (g) Depreciation deduction |
| b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property e 15-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16e Class life b 12-year c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L C 40-year 10 Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | | - | s | | | | (See page 2 d | of the i | nstr | uctions.) |
| b 5-year property c 7-year property d 10-year property e 15-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16e Class life b 12-year c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L C 40-year 10 Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | 15a | 3-year property | | | | | | | | |
| d 10-year property e 15-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental property b Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 12 yrs. S/L C 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 18 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election 18 19 ACRS and other depreciation 168(f)(1) election 18 19 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 20 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 20 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | | | | | | | | | |
| e 15-year property f 20-year property g Residential rental | C | 7-year property | | | | | | | | |
| f 20-year property g Residential rental 27.5 yrs. MM S/L property 27.5 yrs. MM S/L h Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM S/L property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life S/L b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | d | 10-year property | | | | | | | | |
| g Residential rental 27.5 yrs. MM S/L 27.5 yrs. MM S/L 27.5 yrs. MM S/L 39 yrs. MM S/L 39 yrs. MM S/L Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life S/L | • | 15-year property | | | | | | | | |
| property h Nonresidential real property Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life b 12-year 12 yrs. C 40-year 12 yrs. MM S/L S/L C 40-year 13 yrs. MM S/L S/L C 40-year 14 yrs. MM S/L S/L S/L C 40-year 15 yrs. MM S/L S/L C 40-year 16 yrs. MM S/L S/L S/L S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 18 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election 18 ACRS and other depreciation 19 J 5 000 Part IV Summary (See page 4 of the instructions.) 20 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | f | 20-year property | | | | | | <u> </u> | | |
| h Nonresidential real property 39 yrs. MM S/L Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life S/L b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | a | Residential rental | | | | | | | | |
| Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life S/L b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | _ | property | | | | 27.5 yrs. | MM | S/ | 'L | |
| Section C—Alternative Depreciation System (ADS) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 16a Class life S/L b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | h | Nonresidential rea | ad j | | | 39 yrs. | MM | S/ | <u>'L</u> | |
| 16a Class life S/L b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L c 40-year 40 yrs. MM S/L Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | | property | | | | | | | | |
| b 12-year | | | Se | ction C-Alte | rnative Deprecia | tion System (ADS | S) (See page 4 | | | tructions.) |
| C 40-year | | | | | | | | + | | <u> </u> |
| Part III Other Depreciation (Do Not Include Listed Property.) (See page 4 of the instructions.) 17 GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | | | | | | | | | | |
| GDS and ADS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 1995 | _ | | | | <u> </u> | | <u> </u> | | | <u></u> |
| Part IV Summary (See page 4 of the instructions.) Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | Pai | Other De | epreciati | on (Do Nat | <u>Include Listed I</u> | Property.) (See | page 4 of the | instr | | ons.) |
| Part IV Summary (See page 4 of the instructions.) 20 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 21 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | 17 | GDS and ADS dedu | luctions for | assets placed i | in service in tex year | rs beginning before | 1995 | | | |
| Part IV Summary (See page 4 of the instructions.) 20 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 21 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | | | | tion | | | | | |
| 20 Listed property. Enter amount from line 26. 21 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | | | | | | | <u> </u> | <u> 19</u> | 5,000 |
| 21 Total. Add deductions on line 12, lines 15 and 16 in column (g), and lines 17 through 20. Enter here | | | | | | | | | <u></u> | T |
| | | | | | | | <u>.</u> . | | 20 | |
| and on the appropriate lines of your ratum. Partnershaps and 5 corporations—see instructions 27 | 21 | | | | | | | | | C 444 |
| | 99 | - | - | • | • | | # INSTRUCTIONS | - • | _21 | 3,000 |
| Alternative and a second a second and a second a second and a second a | | | | | | entyear, enter | , | | | |
| the portion of the basis attributable to section 263A costs | | ne bornori di 1016 | ᄖᇏᆙᇰᇒᇄ | Dutadie to seci | oon 263A C osis . | 2 | Z | | | |

Form 982

or the form

Preparing and sending

the form to the IRS

(Rev. December 1994)
Department of the Treasury

Reduction of Tax Attributes Due to Discharge of Indebtedness (and Section 1082 Basis Adjustment)

Caution: Use this version of Form 982 for discharge of indebtedness only in tax years beginning after 1993.

OMB No. 1545-0046

Attachment Sequence No. 94

► Attach this form to your income tax return. ernal Revenue Service identifying number Name shown on return 00-0000000 General Information (see instructions) Part I Amount excluded is due to (check applicable box(es)): a Discharge of indebtedness in a title 11 case. Discharge of indebtedness to the extent insolvent (not in a title 11 case) _2 70.000 Do you elect to treat all real property described in section 1221(1), relating to property held for sale to ☐ Yes ☐ No customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business, as if it were depreciable property?. Reduction of Tax Attributes (You must attach a description of any transactions resulting in the reduction Part II in basis under section 1017.) Enter amount excluded from gross income: For a discharge of qualified real property business indebtedness, applied to reduce the basis of depreciable real property That you elect under section 108(b)(5) to apply first to reduce the basis (under section 1017) of 5 Applied to reduce any net operating loss that occurred in the tax year of the discharge or carried 6 Applied to reduce any general business credit carryover to or from the tax year of the discharge Applied to reduce any minimum tax credit as of the beginning of the tax year immediately after 8 Applied to reduce any net capital loss for the tax year of the discharge including any capital loss 70.000 9 Applied to reduce the basis of nondepreciable and depreciable property if not reduced on line 10 For a discharge of qualified farm indebtedness, applied to reduce the basis of: a Depreciable property used or held for use in a trade or business, or for the production of income, if 11a 11b b Land used or held for use in a trade or business of farming 11c c. Other property used or held for use in a trade or business, or for the production of income. Applied to reduce any passive activity loss and credit carryovers from the tax year of the discharge 12 13 Applied to reduce any foreign tax credit carryover to or from the tax year of the discharge. 13 Consent of Corporation to Adjustment of Basis of its Property Under Section 1082(a)(2) Part III The corporation named above has excluded under section 1081(b) of the Internal Revenue Code \$ from its gross income for the tax year beginning, and ending Under that section the corporation consents to have the basis of its property adjusted in accordance with the regulations prescribed under section 1082(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code in effect at the time of filing its income tax return for that year. The corporation is organized under the laws of (State of incorporation) Note: You must attach a description of the transactions resulting in the nonrecognition of gain under section 1081. indebtedriass from your gross income. Unless If you have comments concerning the Paperwork Reduction Act No lice.—We ask for the information on this form to carry out you check the box on line 1d or make the accuracy of these time estimates or election on line 5, the amount excluded from the Internal Revenue laws of the United suggestions for making this form simpler, we gross income reduces certain tax attributes would be happy to hear from you. See the States. You are required to give us the either dollar for dollar or 33% cents per dollar, information. We need it to ensure that you are instructions for the tax return with which this as indicated below. The reduction must be complying with these laws and to allow us to form is filed. made in the following order: figure and collect the right amount of tax. General Instructions The time needed to complete and file this Any net operating loss (NOL) for the tax year of the discharge (and any NOL carryover Section references are to the Internal form will vary depending on individual to that year) (dollar for dollar); circumstances. The estimated average time Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. Purpose of Form.—Generally, the amount by · Any general business credit carryover to or from the tax year of the discharge (33% cents which you benefit from the discharge of Recordkeeping 5 hr., 16 min. Learning about the law indebtedness is included in your gross per dollar);

Any minimum tax credit as of the beginning

of the tax year immediately after the tax year

of the discharge (33% cents per dollar):

circumstances described in section 108, you

may exclude the amount of discharged

income. However, under certain

1 hr., 53 min.

2 hr., 4 min.

Capital Loss Carryover Worksheet (keep for your records)

You may deduct capital losses up to the amount of your capital gains plus \$3,000 (\$1,500 if married filing separately). Capital losses that exceed this amount are carried forward to later years. Use this worksheet to figure your capital loss carryovers from 1995 to 1996 if Schedule D, line 19, is a loss and (a) that loss is a smaller loss than the loss on Schedule D, line 18, or (b) Form 1040, line 35, is a loss.

| Enter the amount from Form 1040, line 35. If a loss, enclose | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| the amount in parentheses | 1. 19.880 |
| _ | 2 1,500 |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 3. 21.380 |
| | 4. 1 500 |
| Note: If line 8 of Schedule D is a loss, go to line 5; otherwise, enter -0- on line 5 and go to line 10. | , |
| Enter the loss from Schedule D, line 8, as a positive amount | 5 |
| Enter the gain, if any, from Schedule D. | |
| Enter the amount from line 4 7. | • |
| Add lines 6 and 7 | 8 |
| Short-term capital loss carryover to 1996. Subtract line 8 from | 9 |
| Note: If line 17 of Schedule D is a loss, go to line 10; otherwise, skip lines 10 through 14. | |
| Enter the loss from Schedule D, line 17, as a positive amount | 10. <u>75.00</u> |
| Enter the gain, if any, from Schedule D, | |
| Subtract line 5 from line 4, If zero or less. | |
| Add lines 11 and 12 | 13. <u>1.50</u> |
| Long-term capital loss carryover to 1996. Subtract line 13 | 14. 73.50 |
| | Enter the loss from Schedule D, line 8, as a positive amount Enter the gain, if any, from Schedule D, line 17 Enter the amount from line 4 Add lines 6 and 7 Short-term capital loss carryover to 1996. Subtract line 8 from line 5. If zero or less, enter -0- Note: If line 17 of Schedule D is a loss, go to line 10; otherwise, skip lines 10 through 14. Enter the loss from Schedule D, line 17, as a positive amount Enter the gain, if any, from Schedule D, line 8 Subtract line 5 from line 4. If zero or less, enter -0- Add lines 11 and 12 |

Partnerships and Corporations

A separate taxable estate is not created when a partnership or corporation files a bankruptcy petition. The court appointed trustee is, however, responsible for filing the regular income tax returns on Form 1065 or Form 1120.

Partnerships

The filing requirements for a partnership in bankruptcy proceedings do not change. However, the filing of required returns becomes the responsibility of an appointed trustee, receiver, or a debtor-in-possession rather than a general partner.

A partnership's debt that is canceled because of bankruptcy is not included in the partnership's income. It may or may not be included in the individual partners' income. See Partnerships, later under Debt Cancellation.

Corporations

The following discussion covers only the highlights of the bankruptcy tax rules applying to corporations. Because the details of corporate bankruptcy reorganizations are beyond the scope of this publication, you may want to seek the help of a professional tax advisor.

See *Corporations* under *Debt Cancellation*, for information about a corporation's debt canceled because of bankruptcy.

Tax-Free Reorganizations

The tax-free reorganization provisions of the Internal Revenue Code apply to a transfer by a corporation of all or part of its assets to another corporation in a title 11 or similar case, but only if, under the reorganization plan, stock or securities of the corporation to which the assets are transferred are distributed in a transaction qualifying under IRC section 354, 355, or 356.

A "title 11 or similar case," for this purpose, is a bankruptcy case under title 11 of the United States Code, or a receivership, foreclosure, or similar proceeding in a federal or state court, but only if the corporation is under the jurisdiction of the court in the case and the transfer of assets is under a plan of reorganization approved by the court. In a receivership, foreclosure, or similar proceeding before a federal or state agency involving certain financial institutions, the agency is treated as a court.

Generally, section 354 provides that no gain or loss is recognized if a corporation's stock is exchanged solely for stock or securities in the same or another corporation under a qualifying reorganization plan. In this case, shareholders in the bankrupt corporation would recognize no gain or loss if they exchange their stock solely for stock or securities of the corporation acquiring the bankrupt's

Section 355 generally provides that no gain or loss is recognized by a shareholder if a corporation distributes solely stock or securities of another corporation that the distributing

corporation controls immediately before the distribution. Section 356 provides that in an exchange that would qualify under section 354 or 355 except that other property or money besides the permitted stock or securities is received by the shareholder, gain is recognized by the shareholder only to the extent of the money and the fair market value of the other property received. No loss is recognized in this situation.

Filing Requirements

The filing requirements of a corporation involved in bankruptcy proceedings do not change. However, the filing of required returns becomes the responsibility of an appointed trustee, receiver, or a debtor-in-possession, rather than a corporate officer.

Exemption from tax return filing. If you are a trustee, receiver, or an assignee of a corporation that is in bankruptcy, receivership, dissolution, or in the hands of an assignee by court order, you may apply to your IRS District Director for relief from filing federal income tax returns for the corporation. To qualify, the corporation must have ceased business operations and must have neither assets nor income.

Your request to the District Director must include the name, address, and employer identification number of the corporation and a statement of the facts (with any supporting documents) showing why you need relief from the filing requirements. You must also include a statement that you are making the request and furnishing the information under penalties of perjury. The District Director will act on your request within 90 days.

Personal Holding Company Tax

A corporation that is subject to the jurisdiction of the court in a title 11 or similar case is exempt from the personal holding company tax, unless the main reason for beginning or continuing this case is to avoid paying this tax. A "title 11 or similar case" is defined earlier under *Tax-Free Reorganizations*.

Tax Procedures

The following section discusses the procedures for determining the amount of tax due from the debtor or the bankruptcy estate, paying the tax claim, and obtaining a discharge of the tax liability.

Determination of Tax

The first step in the determination of the tax due is filing a return. As an individual bankrupt debtor, you file a Form 1040 for the tax year involved, and the trustee of your bankruptcy estate files a Form 1041, as explained earlier under *Individuals in Chapter 7 or 11*. A bankrupt corporation, or a receiver, bankruptcy trustee, or assignee having possession of, or holding title to, substantially all the property or business of the corporation, files a Form 1120 for the tax year.

After the return is filed, the Internal Revenue Service may redetermine the tax liability shown on the return. When the administrative remedies within the Service have been exhausted, the tax issue may be litigated either in the bankruptcy court or in the U.S. Tax Court, as explained in the following discussion.

Request for prompt determination of tax liability by the trustee. The trustee of the bankruptcy estate may request a determination of any unpaid liability of the estate for tax incurred during the administration of the case by the filing of a tax return and a request for such a determination with the Internal Revenue Service. Unless the return is fraudulent or contains a material misrepresentation, the trustee, the debtor, and any successor to the debtor are discharged from liability for the tax upon payment of the tax:

- As determined by the Internal Revenue Service.
- As determined by the bankruptcy court, after the completion of the IRS examination, or
- 3) As shown on the return, if the IRS does not:
 - Notify the trustee within 60 days after the request for the determination that the return has been selected for examination, or
 - b) Complete the examination and notify the trustee of any tax due within 180 days after the request (or any additional time permitted by the bankruptcy court).

Making the request for determination.

To request a prompt determination of any unpaid tax liability of the estate, the trustee must file a written application for the determination with the IRS District Director for the district in which the bankruptcy case is pending. The application must be submitted in duplicate and executed under the penalties of perjury. The trustee must submit with the application an exact copy of the return (or returns) filed by the trustee with the IRS for a completed tax period, and a statement of the name and location of the office where the return was filed. On the envelope write "Personal Attention of the Special Procedures Function. **DO NOT OPEN IN MAILROOM.**"

The IRS examination function will notify the trustee within 60 days from receipt of the application whether the return filed by the trustee has been selected for examination or has been accepted as filed. If the return is selected for examination, it will be examined as soon as possible. The examination function will notify the trustee of any tax due within 180 days from receipt of the application or within any additional time permitted by the bankruptcy court.

Bankruptcy court jurisdiction. Generally, the bankruptcy court has authority to determine the amount or legality of any tax imposed on the debtor or the estate, including any fine, penalty, or addition to tax, whether or not the tax was previously assessed or paid.

The bankruptcy court does not have authority to determine the amount or legality of a tax, fine, penalty, or addition to tax that was contested before and finally decided by a court or administrative tribunal of competent jurisdiction (that became res judicata) before the date of filing the bankruptcy petition.

Also, the bankruptcy court does not have authority to decide the right of the bankruptcy estate to a tax refund until the trustee of the estate properly requests the refund from the Internal Revenue Service and either the Service determines the refund or 120 days pass after the date of the request.

If you (the debtor) have already claimed a refund or credit for an overpayment of tax on a properly filed return or claim for refund, the trustee may rely on that claim. Otherwise, if the credit or refund was not claimed by you, the trustee may make the request by filing the appropriate original or amended return or form with the District Director for the district in which the bankruptcy case is pending. On the return or claim for refund write "Personal Attention of the Special Procedures Function. DO NOT OPEN IN MAILROOM."

The appropriate form for the trustee to use in making the claim for refund is as follows:

- For income taxes for which an individual debtor had filed a Form 1040, Form 1040A, or Form 1040EZ, the trustee should use a Form 1040X, Amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return.
- For income taxes for which a corporate debtor had filed a Form 1120, the trustee should use a Form 1120X, Amended U.S. Corporation Income Tax Return.
- 3) For income taxes for which a debtor had filed a form other than Form 1040, Form 1040A, Form 1040EZ, or Form 1120, the trustee should use the same type of form that the debtor had originally filed, and write "Amended Return" at the top of the form.
- 4) For taxes other than certain excise taxes or income taxes for which the debtor had filed a return, the trustee should use a Form 843, Claim for Refund and Request for Abatement, attaching an exact copy of any return that is the subject of the claim along with a statement of the name and location of the office where the return was
- 5) For excise taxes you reported on Forms 720, 730, or 2290, the trustee should use Form 8849, Claim for Refund of Excise Taxes or Schedule C of Form 720, whichever is appropriate.
- 6) For overpayment of taxes of the bankruptcy estate incurred during the administration of the case, the trustee may choose to use a properly executed tax return (for income taxes, a Form 1041) as a claim for refund or credit.

The IRS examination function, if requested by the trustee or debtor-in-possession as discussed later, will examine the appropriate amended return, claim, or original return filed by the trustee on an expedite basis, and will complete the examination and notify the trustee of its decision within 120 days from the date of filing of the claim.

Tax Court jurisdiction. The filing of a bankruptcy petition automatically results in a stay (suspension) of any U.S. Tax Court proceeding to determine your tax liability as the debtor. This stay continues until one of the acts removing it occurs. The stay may be lifted by the bankruptcy court upon your request, the request of the IRS, or the request of any other party in interest. Because the bankruptcy court has power to lift the stay and allow you to begin or continue a Tax Court case involving your tax liability, the bankruptcy court has, in effect, during the pendency of the stay, the sole authority to determine whether the tax issue is decided in the bankruptcy court itself or in the Tax Court.

Suspension of time for filing. In any bankruptcy case, the 90–day period for filing a Tax Court petition, after the issuance of the statutory notice of deficiency, is suspended for the time you are prevented from filing the petition because of the bankruptcy case, and for 60 days thereafter. However, even if the statutory notice was issued before the bankruptcy petition was filed, the suspension exists if any part of the 90–day period remained at the date the bankruptcy petition was filed.

Trustee may intervene. The trustee of your bankruptcy estate in any title 11 bankruptcy case may intervene, on behalf of the estate, in any proceeding in the U.S. Tax Court to which you are a party.

Tax assessment. Generally, the automatic stay rules prevent a creditor from taking actions to collect prepetition debts. However, the automatic stay does not apply to:

- 1) An audit to determine tax liability,
- 2) A demand for tax returns,
- 3) The issuance of a notice of deficiency to the debtor, or
- The making of an assessment for any tax and the sending of a notice and demand for payment of the tax assessed (for bankruptcy cases filed after October 22, 1994).

Any tax lien that attaches to the estate's property because of an assessment described above can only take effect when the property (or its proceeds) are transferred back to the debtor. Also, the tax must be the debtor's debt that will not be discharged in the case.

Disclosure of return information. In bankruptcy cases other than those of individuals filing under chapter 7 or 11, and in receivership proceedings where substantially all the debtor's property is in the hands of the receiver, current and earlier returns of the debtor are, upon written request, open to inspection by or disclosure to the trustee or receiver, but only if the Internal Revenue Service finds that the trustee or receiver has a material interest which will be affected by information on the

Payment of Tax Claim

After the filing of a bankruptcy petition and during the period the debtor's assets or those of the bankruptcy estate are under the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court, these assets are not subject to levy. The Internal Revenue Service may file a proof of claim in the bankruptcy court the same way as other creditors. This claim may be presented to the bankruptcy court even though the taxes have not yet been assessed or are subject to a Tax Court proceeding.

Eighth priority taxes. In bankruptcy, the debtor's debts are assigned priorities for payment. Most of the prepetition tax debts are classified as eighth priority claims. Generally, *prepetition taxes* are certain income and other taxes that the debtor is considered to owe before he or she files a bankruptcy petition.

The following federal taxes, if unsecured, are prepetition eighth priority taxes of the government:

- Income taxes for tax years ending on or before the date of filing the bankruptcy petition, for which a return is due (including extensions) within 3 years of the filing of the bankruptcy petition.
- 2) Income taxes assessed within 240 days before the date of filing the petition. This 240-day period is increased by any time, plus 30 days, during which an offer in compromise with respect to these taxes was pending, that was made within 240 days after the assessment.
- 3) Income taxes that were not assessed before the petition date, but were assessable as of the petition date, unless these taxes were still assessable solely because no return, a late return (within 2 years of the filing of the bankruptcy petition), or a fraudulent return was filed.
- 4) Withholding taxes for which you are liable in any capacity.
- 5) Employer's share of employment taxes on wages, salaries, or commissions (including vacation, severance, and sick leave pay) paid as priority claims under 11 USC 507(a)(3) or for which a return is due within 3 years of the filing of the bankruptcy petition, including a return for which an extension of the filing date was obtained.
- 6) Excise taxes on transactions occurring before the date of filing the bankruptcy petition, for which a return, if required, is due (including extensions) within 3 years of the filing of the bankruptcy petition. If a return is not required, these excise taxes include only those on transactions occurring during the 3 years immediately before the date of filing the petition.

Priority of payment. For a chapter 7 case, the preceding eighth priority prepetition taxes may be paid out of the assets of the bankruptcy estate to the extent there are assets remaining after paying the claims of secured

creditors and other creditors having higher priority claims.

Different rules apply to payment of eighth priority prepetition taxes under chapters 11, 12, and 13:

- In chapter 11, the debtor can pay these taxes over a period of 6 years from the date of assessment, including interest,
- In chapter 12, the debtor can pay such tax claims in deferred cash payments over time, and
- In chapter 13, the debtor can pay such taxes over 3 years (or over 5 years with court approval).

Certain taxes are assigned a higher priority for payment. Taxes incurred during administration by the bankruptcy estate are paid first, as administrative expenses. Taxes arising in the ordinary course of your business or financial affairs in an *involuntary* bankruptcy case, after the filing of the bankruptcy petition but before the earlier of the appointment of a trustee or the order for relief are included in the second priority of payment. The employee's portion of the employment taxes on the first \$4,000 (to be adjusted 4/1/98) described in (5) above is included in the third priority.

Relief from penalties. A penalty for failure to pay tax, including failure to pay estimated tax, will not be imposed for any period during which a title 11 bankruptcy case is pending, under the following conditions. If the tax was incurred by the bankruptcy estate, the penalty will not be imposed if the failure to pay resulted from an order of the court finding probable insufficiency of funds of the estate to pay administrative expenses. If the tax was incurred by you as the debtor, the penalty will not be imposed if:

- The tax was incurred before the earlier of the order for relief or (in an involuntary case) the appointment of a trustee, and
- The bankruptcy petition was filed before the due date for the tax return (including extensions) or the date for imposing the penalty occurs on or after the day the bankruptcy petition was filed.

This relief from the failure-to-pay penalty does not apply to any penalty for failure to pay or deposit tax withheld or collected from others and required to be paid over to the U.S. government. Nor does it apply to any penalty for failure to timely file a return.

FUTA credit. An employer is generally allowed a credit against the federal unemployment tax (FUTA) for contributions made to a state unemployment fund, if the contributions are paid by the last day for filing an unemployment tax return for the tax year. If the contributions to the state fund are paid after that date, generally only 90% of the otherwise allowable credit may be taken against the federal unemployment tax.

However, for any unemployment tax on wages paid by the trustee of a title 11 bank-ruptcy estate, if the failure to pay the state unemployment contributions on time was without fault by the trustee, the full amount of the credit is allowed.

Statute of limitations for collection. In a title 11 bankruptcy case, the period of limitations for collection of tax (generally, 10 years after assessment) is suspended for the period during which the Internal Revenue Service is prohibited from collecting, plus 6 months thereafter.

Discharge of Unpaid Tax

Debts are divided into two categories; dischargeable and nondischargeable. Dischargeable debts are those that the debtor is no longer personally liable to pay after the bankruptcy proceedings are concluded. Nondischargeable debts are those that are not canceled because of the bankruptcy proceedings. The debtor remains personally liable for their payment.

As a general rule, there is **no discharge** for you as an individual debtor at the termination of a bankruptcy case for the second and eighth priority taxes described earlier, or for taxes for which no return, a late return (filed within 2 years of the filing of the bankruptcy petition), or a fraudulent return was filed. **However**, claims against you for other taxes predating the bankruptcy petition by more than 3 years may be discharged. However, if the IRS has a lien on the debtor's property, this property may be seized to collect discharged tax debts.

Exception for individuals with regular income. If you complete all payments under a chapter 13 debt adjustment plan for an individual with regular income, the court may grant you a discharge of debts, *including* a discharge of the second and eighth priority prepetition taxes described earlier. However, if you fail to complete all payments under the plan, these taxes are not discharged although the court may grant a discharge of other debts in limited circumstances.

Debt Cancellation

If a debt is canceled or forgiven, other than as a gift or bequest, the debtor generally must include the canceled amount in gross income for tax purposes. A debt includes any indebtedness for which the debtor is liable or which attaches to property the debtor holds.

Exceptions and Exclusions

There are several exceptions and exclusions from the inclusion of canceled debt in income. The exceptions include:

 The cancellation of a student loan for a student required to work for certain employers. See Cancellation of student loan in Publication 525, Taxable and Nontaxable Income.

- 2) The cancellation of debt that would have been deductible if paid.
- The reduction of a debt by the seller of property if the debt arose from the purchase of the property.

The exclusions are discussed next.

Exclusions

Do **not** include a canceled debt in gross income if any of the following situations apply:

- The cancellation takes place in a bankruptcy case under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. See Bankruptcy case exclusion, later.
- The cancellation takes place when you are insolvent (see *Insolvency exclusion*, later), and the amount excluded is not more than the amount by which you are insolvent.
- The canceled debt is qualified farm debt (debt incurred in operating a farm). See chapter 4 of Publication 225, Farmer's Tax Guide.
- The canceled debt is qualified real property business indebtedness (certain debt connected with business real property). See Publication 525, Taxable and Nontaxable Income.

Order of exclusions. If the cancellation of debt occurs in a title 11 bankruptcy case, the bankruptcy exclusion takes precedence over the insolvency, qualified farm debt, or qualified real property business indebtedness exclusions.

To the extent that the taxpayer is insolvent, the insolvency exclusion takes precedence over qualified farm debt or qualified real property business indebtedness exclusions.

Bankruptcy case exclusion. A bankruptcy case is a case under title 11 of the United States Code, but only if the debtor is under the jurisdiction of the court and the cancellation of the debt is granted by the court or occurs as a result of a plan approved by the court.

None of the debt canceled in a bankruptcy case is included in your gross income in the year canceled. Instead, certain losses, credits, and basis of property must be reduced by the amount of excluded income (but not below zero). These losses, credits, and basis in property are called tax attributes and are discussed under *Reduction of Tax Attributes*, later.

Insolvency exclusion. You are insolvent when, and to the extent, your liabilities exceed the fair market value of your assets. Determine your liabilities and the fair market value of your assets immediately before the cancellation of your debt to determine whether or not you are insolvent and the amount by which you are insolvent.

Exclude from your gross income debt canceled when you are insolvent, but only up to the amount by which you are insolvent. However, you **must** use the amount excluded to reduce certain tax attributes, as explained later under *Reduction of Tax Attributes*. Example. \$4,000 of the Simpson Corporation's liabilities are cancelled outside bankruptcy. Immediately before the cancellation, the Simpson Corporation's liabilities totaled \$21,000 and the fair market value of its assets was \$17,500. Because its liabilities were more than its assets, it was insolvent. The amount of the insolvency was \$3,500 (\$21,000 – \$17,500).

The corporation may exclude only \$3,500 of the \$4,000 debt cancellation from income because that is the amount by which it was insolvent. It must also reduce certain tax attributes by the \$3,500 of excluded income. The remaining \$500 of canceled debt must be included in income.

Reduction of Tax Attributes

If a debtor excludes canceled debt from income because it is canceled in a bankruptcy case or during insolvency, he or she **must** use the excluded amount to reduce certain "tax attributes." Tax attributes include the basis of certain assets and the losses and credits listed next. By reducing these tax attributes, tax on the canceled debt is in part postponed instead of being entirely forgiven. This prevents an excessive tax benefit from the debt cancellation.

If a separate bankruptcy estate was created, the trustee or debtor-in-possession must reduce the estate's attributes (but not below zero) by the canceled debt. See *Individuals under chapter 7 or chapter 11*, later.

Order of reduction. Generally, use the amount of canceled debt to reduce the tax attributes in the order listed below. However, you may choose to use all or a part of the amount of canceled debt to first reduce the basis of depreciable property before reducing the other tax attributes. This choice is discussed later.

Net operating loss. First, reduce any net operating loss for the tax year in which the debt cancellation takes place, and any net operating loss carryover to that tax year.

General business credit carryovers. Second, reduce any carryovers, to or from the tax year of the debt cancellation, of amounts used to determine the general business credit.

Minimum tax credit. Third, reduce any minimum tax credit that is available as of the beginning of the tax year following the tax year of the debt cancellation.

Capital losses. Fourth, reduce any net capital loss for the tax year of the debt cancellation, and any capital loss carryover to that year.

Basis. Fifth, reduce the basis of your property as described under *Basis Reduction*, later. This reduction applies to the basis of both depreciable and nondepreciable property.

Passive activity loss and credit carryovers. Sixth, reduce any passive activity loss or credit carryover from the tax year of the debt cancellation. **Foreign tax credit.** Last, reduce any carryover, to or from the tax year of the debt cancellation, of an amount used to determine the foreign tax credit or the Puerto Rico and possession tax credit.

Amount of reduction. Except for the credit carryovers, reduce the tax attributes listed earlier one dollar for each dollar of canceled debt that is excluded from income. Reduce the credit carryovers by 33½ cents for each dollar of canceled debt that is excluded from income.

Making the reduction. Make the required reductions in tax attributes after figuring the tax for the tax year of the debt cancellation. In reducing net operating losses and capital losses, first reduce the loss for the tax year of the debt cancellation, and then any loss carryovers to that year in the order of the tax years from which the carryovers arose, starting with the earliest year. Make the reductions of credit carryovers in the order in which the carryovers are taken into account for the tax year of the debt cancellation.

Individuals under chapter 7 or chapter 11. In an individual bankruptcy under chapter 7 (liquidation) or chapter 11 (reorganization) of title 11, the required reduction of tax attributes must be made to the attributes of the bankruptcy estate, a separate taxable entity resulting from the filing of the case. Also, the trustee of the bankruptcy estate must make the choice of whether to reduce the basis of depreciable property first before reducing other tax attributes. See the discussion of *The Bankruptcy Estate*, earlier.

Basis Reduction

If any amount of the debt cancellation is used to reduce the basis of assets as discussed under *Reduction of Tax Attributes*, the following rules apply to the extent indicated.

When to make the basis reduction. Make the reduction in basis at the beginning of the tax year following the tax year of the debt cancellation. The reduction applies to property held at that time. See section 1.1017–1 of the Income Tax Regulations for more information.

Bankruptcy and insolvency reduction limit.

The reduction in basis because of canceled debt in bankruptcy or in insolvency cannot be more than the total basis of property held immediately after the debt cancellation, minus the total liabilities immediately after the cancellation. This limit does not apply if an election is made to reduce basis before reducing other attributes. This election is discussed

Exempt property under title 11. If debt is canceled in a bankruptcy case under title 11 of the United States Code, make no reduction in basis for property that the debtor treats as exempt property under section 522 of title 11.

Election to reduce basis first. You (the estate in the case of an individual bankruptcy

under chapter 7 or 11) may choose to reduce the basis of depreciable property before reducing any other tax attributes. However, this reduction of the basis of depreciable property cannot be more than the total basis of depreciable property held at the beginning of the tax year following the tax year of the debt cancellation

Depreciable property means any property subject to depreciation, but only if a reduction of basis will reduce the amount of depreciation or amortization otherwise allowable for the period immediately following the basis reduction. You may choose to treat as depreciable property any real property that is stock in trade or is held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business. You must generally make this choice on the tax return for the tax year of the debt cancellation, and, once made, you can only revoke it with IRS approval. However, if you establish reasonable cause, you may make the choice with an amended return or claim for refund or credit.

Making elections. Make the election to reduce the basis of depreciable property before reducing other tax attributes as well as the election to treat real property inventory as depreciable property, on Form 982, Reduction of Tax Attributes Due to Discharge of Indebtedness (and Section 1082 Basis Adjustment).

Recapture of basis reductions. If any basis in property is reduced under these provisions and is later sold or otherwise disposed of at a gain, the part of the gain that is from this basis reduction is taxable as ordinary income. Figure the ordinary income part by treating the amount of this basis reduction as a depreciation deduction and by treating any such basisreduced property that is not already either section 1245 or section 1250 property as section 1245 property. In the case of section 1250 property, make the determination of what would have been straight line depreciation as though there had been no basis reduction for debt cancellation. Sections 1245 and 1250 and the recapture of gain as ordinary income are explained in chapter 4, Dispositions of Depreciable Property, in Publication 544, Sales and Other Dispositions of Assets.

Partnerships

If a partnership's debt is canceled because of bankruptcy or insolvency, the rules for the exclusion of the canceled amount from gross income and for tax attribute reduction are applied at the individual partner level. Thus, each partner's share of debt cancellation income must be reported on the partner's return unless the partner meets the bankruptcy or insolvency exclusions explained earlier. Then all choices, such as the choices to reduce the basis of depreciable property before reducing other tax attributes, to treat real property inventory as depreciable property, and to end the tax year on the day before filing the bankruptcy case, must be made by the individual partners, not the partnership.

Depreciable property. For purposes of reducing the basis of depreciable property in attribute reduction, a partner treats his or her partnership interest as depreciable property to the extent of the partner's proportionate interest in the partnership's depreciable property. This applies only if the partnership makes a corresponding reduction in the partnership's basis in its depreciable property with respect to the partner.

Partner's basis in partnership. The allocation of an amount of debt cancellation income to a partner results in that partner's basis in the partnership being increased by that amount. At the same time, the reduction in the partner's share of partnership liabilities caused by the debt cancellation results in a deemed distribution, in turn resulting in a reduction of the partner's basis in the partnership. These basis adjustments are separate from any basis reduction under the attribute-reduction rules described earlier.

Corporations

Corporations in a bankruptcy proceeding or insolvency generally follow the same rules for debt cancellation and reduction of tax attributes as an individual or individual bankruptcy estate would follow.

Stock for Debt Exchange

If a corporation transfers its stock in satisfaction of indebtedness and the fair market value of its stock is less than the indebtedness it owes, the corporation has income (to the extent of the difference) from the cancellation of indebtedness. After 1994, a corporation can exclude all or a portion of the income created by the stock for debt transfer if it is in a bankruptcy proceeding or, if not in a bankruptcy proceeding, it can exclude the income to the extent it is insolvent. However, the corporation must reduce its tax attributes (to the extent it has any) by the amount of excluded income.

Stock for debt exception. The stock for debt exception was repealed for transfers made after 1994 unless the corporation filed for bankruptcy (or similar court proceeding) before 1994. Generally, before 1995, a corporation did not realize income because of such stock for debt exchanges if it was in bankruptcy or to the extent it was insolvent. Consequently, there was no gross income to exclude and no reduction of its tax attributes was necessary. The principal difference between the stock for debt exception and the stock for debt exception are the stock for debt exception.

Earnings and profits

The earnings and profits of a corporation do not include income from the discharge of indebtedness to the extent of the amount applied to reduce the basis of the corporation's property as explained earlier. Otherwise, discharge of indebtedness income, including amounts excluded from gross income, increases the earnings and profits of the corporation (or reduces a deficit in earnings and profits).

If there is a deficit in the corporation's earnings and profits and the interest of any share-holder of the corporation is terminated or extinguished in a title 11 or similar case (defined earlier), the deficit must be reduced by an amount equal to the paid-in capital allocable to the shareholder's terminated or extinguished interest

S Corporations

For S corporations, the rules for excluding income from debt cancellation because of bankruptcy or insolvency apply at the corporate level.

Net operating losses. A loss or deduction that is disallowed for the tax year of the debt cancellation because it exceeds the shareholders' basis in the corporation's stock and debt is treated as a net operating loss for that tax year in making the required reduction of tax attributes for the amount of the canceled debt.

Tax Attribute Reduction Example

The sample filled-in Form 982, Reduction of Tax Attributes Due to Discharge of Indebtedness (and Section 1082 Basis Adjustment), shown in this publication is based on the following situation.

Tom Smith is in financial difficulty, but he has been able to avoid declaring bankruptcy. In 1995, he reached an agreement with his creditors, whereby they agreed to forgive \$10,000 of the total that he owed them, in return for his setting up a schedule for repayment of the rest of his debts.

Immediately before the debt cancellation, Tom's liabilities totaled \$120,000 and the fair market value of his assets was \$100,000 (his total basis in all these assets was \$90,000). At the time of the debt cancellation, he was considered insolvent by \$20,000. He can exclude from income the entire \$10,000 debt cancellation because it was not more than the amount by which he was insolvent.

Among Tom's assets, the only depreciable asset is a rental condominium with an adjusted basis of \$50,000. Of this, \$10,000 is allocable to the land, leaving a depreciable basis of \$40,000. He has a long-term capital loss carry-over to 1996 of \$5,000. He also has a net operating loss of \$2,000 and a \$3,000 net operating loss carryover from 1994. He has no other tax attributes arising from the current tax year or carried to this year.

Ordinarily, in applying the \$10,000 debt cancellation amount to reduce tax attributes, Tom would first reduce his \$2,000 net operating loss, next his \$3,000 net operating loss carryover from 1994, and then his \$5,000 net capital loss carryover. However, he figures that it is better for him to preserve his loss carryovers for the next tax year.

Tom elects to reduce basis first. He can reduce the depreciable basis of his rental condominium (his only depreciable asset) by \$10,000. The tax effect of doing this will be to reduce his depreciation deductions for years following the year of the debt cancellation. However, if he later sells the condominium at a gain, the part of the gain from the basis reduction will be taxable as ordinary income.

Tom must file Form 982, as shown here, with his individual return (Form 1040) for the tax year of the debt discharge. In addition, he must attach a statement describing the debt cancellation transaction and identifying the property to which the basis reduction applies. This statement is not illustrated.

How to Get More Information

You can get help from the IRS in several ways.

Free publications and forms. To order free publications and forms, call 1—800—TAX—FORM (1—800—829—3676). You can also write to the IRS Forms Distribution Center nearest you. Check your income tax package for the address. Your local library or post office also may have the items you need.

For a list of free tax publications, order Publication 910, *Guide to Free Tax services*. It also contains an index of tax topics and related publications and describes other free tax information services available from IRS, including tax education and assistance programs.

If you have access to a personal computer and modem, you also can get many forms and publications electronically. See *How To Get Forms and Publications* in your income tax package for details. If space permitted, this information is at the end of this publication.

Tax questions. You can call the IRS with your tax questions. Check your income tax package or telephone book for the local number, or you can call 1—800—829—1040.

Telephone help for hearing-impaired persons. If you have access to TDD equipment, you can call 1—800—829—4059 to ask tax questions or to order forms and publications. See your income tax package for the hours of operation.

Form **982**

(Mev. December 1994) Decembert of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

Reduction of Tax Attributes Due to Discharge of Indebtedness (and Section 1082 Basis Adjustment)

Caution: Use this version of Form 982 for discharge of mobiledness only in tax years beginning after 1993.

Attach this form to your income tax return.

OMB No. 1545-0046

Attachment Sequence No. 94

identifying number Name shown on return OM 000-00-0000 General Information (see instructions) Part I Amount excluded is due to (check applicable box(es)): × 2 | Do you elect to treat all real property described in section 1221(1), relating to property held for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business, as if it were depreciable property?. ☐ Yes ☐ No Part II Reduction of Tax Attributes (You must attach a description of any transactions resulting in the reduction in basis under section 1017.) Enter amount excluded from gross income: For a discharge of qualified real property business indebtedness, applied to reduce the basis of depreciable real property That you elect under section 108(b)(5) to apply first to reduce the basis (under section 1017) of 10.000 5 Applied to reduce any net operating loss that occurred in the tax year of the discharge or carried over to the tax year of the discharge 6 Applied to reduce any general business credit carryover to or from the tax year of the discharge 7 Applied to reduce any minimum tax credit as of the beginning of the tax year immediately after 8 Applied to reduce any net capital loss for the tax year of the discharge including any capital loss 9 Applied to reduce the basis of nondepreciable and depreciable property if not reduced on line 10 5. DO NOT use in the case of discharge of qualified farm indebtedness 11 For a discharge of qualified farm indebtedness, applied to reduce the basis of: a Depreciable property used or held for use in a trade or business, or for the production of income, if 11a 11b c Other property used or held for use in a trade or business, or for the production of income. 11c Applied to reduce any passive activity loss and credit carryovers from the tax year of the discharge 12 Applied to reduce any foreign tax credit carryover to or from the tax year of the discharge 13 Part III Consent of Corporation to Adjustment of Basis of its Property Under Section 1082(a)(2) The corporation named above has excluded under section 1081(b) of the Internal Revenue Code \$ from its gross income for the tax year beginning, and ending Under that section the corporation consents to have the basis of its property adjusted in accordance with the regulations prescribed under section 1082(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code in effect at the time of filing its income tax return for that year. The corporation is organized under the laws of (State of incorporation) Note: You must attach a description of the transactions resulting in the nonrecognition of gain under section 1081. Paperwork Reduction Act Notice.—We ask # you have comments concerning the indebtedness from your gross income. Unless for the information on this form to carry out accuracy of these time estimates or you check the box on line 1d or make the the Internal Revenue laws of the United suggestions for making this form simpler, we election on line 5, the amount excluded from States. You are required to give us the would be happy to hear from you. See the gross income reduces certain tax attributes. information. We need it to ensure that you are instructions for the tax return with which this either dollar for dollar or 33% cents per dollar. complying with these laws and to allow us to form is filed. as indicated below. The reduction must be figure and collect the right amount of tax. made in the following order: General Instructions The time needed to complete and file this Any net operating loss (NOL) for the tax form will vary depending on individual. Section references are to the Internal year of the discharge (and any NOL carryover

Form 982 (Rev. 12-94)

to that year) (dollar for dollar):

Any general business credit carryover to or

from the tax year of the discharge (33% cents

Any minimum tax credit as of the beginning

of the tax year immediately after the tax year

of the discharge (33% cents per dollar):

circumstances described in section 108, you

Purpose of Form.—Generally, the amount by

Revenue Code unless otherwise nated.

which you benefit from the discharge of

indebtedness is included in your gross

may exclude the amount of discharged

income. However, under certain

circumstances. The estimated average time

Recordkeeping 5 hr., 16 min.

1 br., 53 min.

2 hr., 4 min.

Learning about the law

Preparing and sending

the form to the IRS

or the form

Index